REGULAR BOARD MEETING
GONZALES COUNTY UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District will meet in a public session
on September 10, 2024, immediately following the public hearing at 5:30 p.m., at the Gonzales County
Underground Water Conservation District Office located at 522 Saint Matthew Street, Gonzales, Texas.

Note: Members of the public wishing to comment must attend the meeting in-person. However, any person
may view or listen to the meeting via audio and video conference call. No participation or public comments
will be allowed via video or conference call. The Audio and Video Conference Opens 5 minutes before the
5:30 p.m. beginning of the meeting.

GCUWCD September 10, 2024, Public Hearing Proposed Tax Rate and Regular Board Meeting
Sep 10, 2024, 5:30 — 7:30 PM (America/Chicago)

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://meet.goto.com/645742965

You can also dial in using your phone.
Access Code: 645-742-965 POSTE D

United States (Toll Free): 1 877 309 2073

United States: +1 (646) 749-3129 _
Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: SEP 04 2}021‘% -
https://meet.goto.com/install LONAACKMAN

COUNTY @1 ERK, GONZALES COUNTY TEXAS
The agenda is as follows: BY. QAN ). _DEPUTY

1. Call to Order.

2. Public Comments. Limit to 3 minutes per person.

3. Consent Agenda (Note: These items may be considered and approved by one motion of the Board.
Directors may request to have any consent item removed from the consent agenda for consideration and
possible action as a separate agenda item):

a. Approval of minutes of August 13, 2024, Public Hearing.

b. Approval of minutes of August 13, 2024, Regular Board Meeting.

c. Approval of the Financial Report.

d. Approval of the District’s bills to be paid.

e. Approval of the Mitigation Fund bills to be paid.

f.  Approval of District Manager, Administrative Staff, Board Member, Field Technician, and
Mitigation Manager Expenses.

g. Approval of Manager’s Report (monthly report, transporter usage, drought index).

h. Approval of Well Mitigation Manager’s Report (well mitigation progress).

i.  Approval of Field Technician’s Report (well registrations, water levels, water quality).

4. Discuss and possibly take action on any item removed from Consent Agenda.

5. Discuss and possibly take action on a resolution for a moratorium on new permits and permit
-amendments until the draft rules are adopted.

6. Discuss and possibly take action on setting the tax rate for the 2024 — 2025 fiscal year.

7. Discus and possibly take action on revisions to the District’s fiscal year 2023 — 2024 budget

8. Discuss and possibly take action on the District’s fiscal year 2024 — 2025 Budget.

9. Discuss and possibly take action on the District’s Western Mitigation Fund fiscal year 2024 — 2025
budget.

10. Discuss and possibly take action on the District’s Eastern Mitigation Fund fiscal year 2024 — 2025
budget.

11. Discuss and possibly take action on the scheduling of a draft District Rule amendment workshop.

12. Discuss and possibly take action on draft District Rule amendments.



12.
13.

14

I3,
16.

17.
18.
19,
20.

21.

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
GONZALES COUNTY UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Discuss and possibly take action on draft District Rule amendments.
Executive session pursuant to § 551.074 Government Code for personnel matters.

. Discus and possibly take action on the agenda layout, and general board policies regarding virtual public

comments.

Discuss and take action on a permit renewal for an irrigation well in the Carrizo Aquifer for E.P. Valley.
Discuss and take action on a permit renewal for an irrigation well in the Carrizo Aquifer for Mr. Troy
Kisner.

Discuss and take action on a permit renewal for an industrial well in the Carrizo Aquifer for Seger
Family Investments, LLC.

Presentation on website navigation.

Presentation of legislative/legal updates from legal counsel.

Discussion of other items of interest by the Board and direction to management based on the items set
forth above.

Adjourn.

The above agenda schedule represents an estimate of the order for the indicated items and is subject to change at
any time. These public meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special
assistance to attend the meeting, please call 830.672.1047 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting to coordinate
any special physical access arrangements.

At any time during the meeting and in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Government
Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District Board
may meet in executive session on any of the above agenda items or other lawful items for consultation concerning
attorney-client matters (§ 551.071); deliberation regarding real property (§ 551.072); deliberation regarding
prospective gift (§ 551.073); personnel matters (§ 551.074); and deliberation regarding security devices
(§ 551.076). Any subject discussed in executive session may be subject to action during an open meeting.

POSTED THIS THE 4" DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2024 AT O’CLOCK by




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Minutes of the Board of Directors
August 13, 2024
Public Hearing Draft Rules

Call to Order

The Board of Directors of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District (the District) called a
public hearing regarding the District’s Draft Rules. The meeting was called to order at 5:31 PM. Present for the
meeting were directors: Mr. Barry Miller, Mr. Mark Ainsworth, Mr. Michael St. John, Mr. Bruce Tieken. Mr.
Glenn Glass was not in attendance. Also present for the meeting was GCUWCD General Manager Ms. Laura
Martin, and Iegal counsel, Mr. Gregory Ellis. Other Attendees included: (See Attached List)

President of the Board to make comments
None.

Receive comments from the public on the District’s proposed Draft Rules.

Ms. Sally Ploeger, landowner made a public comment, then Ms. Ploeger made a public comment on behalf of
Mr. Ted Boriack, landowner who was not in attendance. Mr, Graham Moore, Alliance Regional Water
Authority, Mr. Charlie Hickman, Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority, and Ms. Trish Carls, Canyon Regional
Water Authority, made public comments, A recording of the board meeting and comments received are filed at
the District office and on the District website.

Discussion of other items of interest by the Board and direction to management based on the items set
forth above.
None.

Adjourn

A motion was made by Mr. Barry Miller to adjourn the meeting, and Mr. Michael St. John seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 5:50 PM.

Approved By:

September 10, 2024

HS



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Minutes of the Board of Directors
August 13, 2024
Regular Board Meeting

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District (the
District) was called to order. Present for the meeting were directors: Mr. Bruce Tieken, Mr. Barry Miller, Mr. Mark
Ainsworth, and Mr. Michael St. John. Mr. Glenn Glass was not in attendance Also present for the meeting were GCUWCD
General Manager Ms. Laura Martin, and Legal Counsel Mr. Gregory Ellis. Other Attendees included: (See Attached List)

Call to Order.
The President of the Board called the meeting fo order at 5:51 PM.

Public Comments. Limit to 3 minutes per person.
Ms. Sally Ploeger, landowner, made a public comment. A recording of the board meeting and comments received are filed
at the District office and on the District website.

Consent Agenda (Note: These items may be considered and approved by one motion of the Board. Directors
may request to have any consent item removed from the consent agenda for consideration and possible action
as a separate agenda item):
Approval of minutes of July 09, 2024, Regular Board Meeting.
Approval of the Financial Report.
Approval of the District’s bills to be paid.
Approval of the Mitigation Fund bills to be paid.
Approval of District Manager, Administrative Staff, Board Member, Field Technician, Mitigation
Manager ILxpenses.

f.  Approval of Manager’s Report (monthly report, transporter usage, drought index).

g. Approval of Well Mitigation Manager’s Report (well mitigation progress).

h. Approval of Field Technician Report (monthly report).
The consent agenda was reviewed by the Board of Directors. Mr. Barry Miller made a motion to approve the consent agenda.
Mr. Mark Ainsworth seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

e Tw

Discuss and possibly take action on any item removed from Consent Agenda.
None,

Discuss and possibly take action on Receipt of the Certification of 2023 Appraisal Rolls for Gonzales and
Caldwell Counties.
The Board of Directors received the 2023 Appraisal Rolls for Gonzales and Caldwell Counties. Mr. Ainsworth made a
motion to accept and receive the Appraisal Rolls for Gonzales and Caldwell Counties. Mr, Michael St. John seconded the
motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and possibly take action on revisions of the District’s fiscal year 2023-2024 budget.
No action taken.

Executive session pursuant to §551.074 Government Code for discussion of personnel matters.
No action taken.

Discuss and possibly take action on the District’s fiscal year 2024-2025 budget.
No action taken,

Discuss and possibly take action on setting Proposed Tax Rate for the District.
The General Manager and Board of Directors discussed the tax rate, and the roliback rate. Mr. Miller made a motion to set
a proposed tax rate of 0.002817%. Mr. St. John seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and possibly take action on the Western Mitigation Fund fiscal year 2024-2025 budget.
No action taken at this time.



Discuss and possibly take action on the Eastern Mitigation Fund fiscal year 2024-2025 budget.
No action taken at this time,

Discuss and possibly take action on renewal of CD #8549 at Sage Capital Bank expiring on August 14,2024,
The General Manager and Board of Directors discussed the various rates offered from the local banks on Certificates of
Deposit over $100,000. Mr. Miller made a motion to rollover CD#8549 into a Sage Capital Bank of Gonzales for 12
months at a 5.00% rate. Mr, St. John seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and possibly take action on adopting the GCUWCD Draft Rules.
No action was taken at this time.

Discuss and take acfion on a permit renewal for an irrigation well in the Carrizo Aquifer for well owners Ms.
Sally Ploeger, Mr. Mark Ploeger, and Mrs. Mary Ann Menning.
The General Manager and the Board of Directors discussed the permit renewal to approve the permit renewal for an
irrigation well in the Carrizo City Aquifer for Ms. Sally Ploeger, Mr. Mark Ploeger, and Mrs. Mary Ann Menning. Mr.
Ainsworth made a motion to renew the permit. Mr, Bruce Tieken seconded the motion, The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and take action on a permit renewal for Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation for Carrizo
wells #1-12,
The General Manager and the Board of Directors discussed approving the permit renewal for Schertz-Seguin Local
Government Corporation for Carrizo wells #1-12. Mr. Ainsworth made a motion to approve the permit renewal. Mr. St.
John seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and possibly take action on a Bank Resolution to update bank signatures.
Mr. Miller made a motion to pass the bank resolution to update all bank signature cards with the current board members.
Mr, Tieken seconded the motion, The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and take action on a resolution adopting the revised Management Plan.
Mr. Miller made a motion to adopt and submit the revised Management Plan. Mr. St. John seconded the motion. The
motion passed unanimously.

Presentation of legislative/legal updates from legal counsel.
Mr. Greg Ellis discussed Legislative and legal updates.

Discussion of other items of interest by the Board and direction to management based on the items set forth
above.
Discussion took place about the S.0.A.H. preliminary hearing timeline. No action was taken.

Adjourn:

A motion was made by Mr. Ainsworth to adjourn the meeting and Mr. St. John seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 7:03 PM.

Approved By:

September 10, 2024

HS




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

Investment Report
September 10, 2024

CD Information - District Funds

Purchase
Account Place Purchase Date Value Interest Rate Maturity Date As of Amount
CD #11 Sage Capital Bank 8/4/2023 $152,818.77 5.15% 2/4/2025  8/31/2024 $179,869.14
CD #365 Randolph Brooks FCU 3/28/2023 $271,523.86 4.50% 9/28/2024  8/31/2024 $271,589.47
CD#49 Sage Capital Bank 8/14/2024 $250,000.00 5.00% 8/14/2025  8/31/2024 $285,521.75
Total CD's to Date $736,980.36
Market Comparisons
Tex Pool 5.27% 9/5/2024
6 Mo. Treasury Yield 4.74% 9/5/2024
Banking Information - District Funds
Account Place As of Amount
#59 Money Market Sage Capital Bank 8/31/2024  $1,397,804.80
#61 Operating Sage Capital Bank 8/31/2024 $23,499.32
#356 Savings Randolph Brooks 8/31/2024 $1.00
Total Cash to Date $1,421,305.12
Banking Information - Western Mitigation Fund
Account Place As of Amount
#35 Money Market Sage Capital Bank 8/31/2024 $216,848.73
#70 Operating Sage Capital Bank 8/31/2024 $2,132.93
Total Cash to Date $218,981.66
Banking Information - Eastern Mitigation Fund
Account Place As of Amount
#64 Money Market Sage Capital Bank 8/31/2024 $280,882.19
#98 Operating Sage Capital Bank 8/31/2024 $2,134.03
Total Cash to Date $283,016.22
Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) $2,660,283.36
Using the Current Date and Maturity Date: Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) =
The overall sum of each security's par amount multiplied by its number of days to maturity, divided by the total of all investments.
Reprting
Security Description Investment Amount  CD Start Date  Period Date  Mat. Date  Mat. in Days (DTM) WAM CD Term
Sage Capital CD #11 $179,869.14 8/4/2023 8/31/2024 2/4/2025 157 38.318 18 mo
Randolph Brooks CD #365 $271,589.47 3/28/2023 8/31/2024  9/28/2024 28 10.318 18 mo
|Sage Capital CD #49 $285,521.75 8/14/2024 8/31/2024  8/14/2025 348 134.823 12 mo
CD Total $736,980.36 183.459
#59 Money Market $1,397,804.80 1 0.727
#61 Operating $23,499.32 1 0.012
#365 Savings $1.00 1 0.000
#35 Money Market $216,848.73 1 0.113
#70 Operating $2,132.93 1 0.001
#64 Money Market $280,882.19 1 0.146
#98 Operating $2,134.03 1 0.001
Fund Total $1,923,303.00 1.000
Grand Totals $2,660,283.36 WAM 184.459

The portfolio of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District is believed to be in compliance with the District's Board approved

Investmen

¢ law, and the Investment Strategy.

Dated:§ fl \03 ! 2 ])ZH




GCUWCD BILLS TO BE PAID

September 10, 2024

GVTC (Local & Long Distance & Internet)-Paid $ 279.23
City of Gonzales (Utilities)-Paid $ 233.58
Ricoh (Copier Rental)-Paid $ 217.75
Immense Impact (Annual website)-Paid $ 499.00
Post Office Box Rental $ 266.00
Hyatt Regency (TAGD Annual Summit)-Paid $ 405.84
Hi-Tech Pest Services $ 95.00
Caldwell County, County Clerk (post notice)-Paid $ 2.00
Lockhart Post-Register (Published Notices) $ 1,032.00
ESRI (ArcGIS Desktop) $ 1,108.25
Texas Water Conservation Association-Paid $ 454.00
GoToMeeting (Monthly Phone Charge)-Paid $ 1.92
H-E-B (Office Supplies)-Paid $ 53.96
Amazon {extention cord cover)-Paid : $ 42.06
McElroy Sullivan Miller & Weber LLP (GBRA Hearing-August) $ 8,110.30
Coastal Office Solutions {office supplies, Invoice QE-47706-1 & QE-

47708-1)-Paid $ 151.99
Coastal Office Solutions (office supplies, Invoice IN-5333 & IN-5376) | § 127.80
Caldwell County Appraisal District (2024 4th QTR Coll.) $ 17.31
Caldwell County Appraisal District (2024 4th QTR Prop.) $ 54.94
Gonzales Central Appraisal District (2024 4th QTR Budget Share) $ 748.25
Synergisdic, LL.C $ 824.00
Texas A&M AGRILIFE EXTENSION (Water Fair: WQ Samples)-Paid | $ 1,225.00
Gonzales Inquirer (Published Notices) $ 612.00
Walmart (office supplies) $ 35.86
Total $ 16,598.04




GCUWCD WMF BILLS TO BE PAID
September 10, 2024

TOTAL $0.00




GCUWCD EMF BILLS TO BE PAID
September 10, 2024

TOTAL $0.00




¥20¢ ‘0L Ilequsideg eieq
:Ag psnaoiddy

Gy LBCS ang |ejoL $202Z ‘1 £-1 1snbny pa1sno) pousd
00°0.% suoyds|a |
v8/.% (sbuneaaly 3 |oael | ) Aouabay neAH 00/8
LOEYCS [elolgng | eley X 2Desjiy
290 X 8]y luslny
¥9¢ SN [B10 1L
0
6 106101 808101 SWoH | Oluoluy ueg HUWUWING 9OV 1 Woi+4 unioy 22/8
6 808101 912101 oluojuy ueg SWoH Huwng dov.l 0¢/8
6 SLLLOL PZ9L01L SWOH| oluoiUy UEG
/8 29101 LEGLOL oluojuy ueg 20IO| Aujioe4 syeQgH 01 duipleld AOVL 61/8
S9N [e}OL wmmm__s_ mmmwu_s_ ol wod - mumn___.d_._.m. JO SINJEN
Buipug Buiuuibag

poday asuadx3g
}2111SI( UOIIBAIDSUO) J8)eAA punolbispun A3unosn ssjezuon

udepy "IN eine




verizon’

PO BOX 489

NEWARK, NJ 07101-0489 Account: 788600115-00001
Invoice: 4620810128
Billing period: Jul 13 - Aug 12, 2024

Questions about your bill?

KEYLINE verizon.com/support

| L A A e 800:022-0204

LAURA MARTIN

PO BOX 363 Ways to pay

GONZALES, TX 78629-0363
My Verizon app
You can check your bill easily with the My

Verizon app available in App Store or Google
Play.

E Online

4 h Go to go.vzw.com/hill and sign in to review

Snapshot of your bill your bill

(details on page 3)

@ By phone

$0 00 Simply dial #PMT (#768) on your phone and
. follow the instructions to pay.

Balance from last bill

This month's charges $359.67 Cash
Go to www.verizon.com/stores to find a
Total due on Sep 4 $359_67 Verizon Wireless store near you or find a

Check Free Pay or Western Union near you to
make a cash payment.

You have Auto Pay scheduled for Sep 1, 2024.

N J
If you don't pay the total charges due by the due date, you'll be charged 5% of the unpaid balance or ST,
whichever is greater, if allowed by law in the state of your billing address.

Verizon‘/ Bill date August 12, 2024

Account number 788600115-00001
Invoice number 4680810128
LAURA MARTIN
PO BOX 363 Total Amount Due
GONZALES, TX 78629-0363
2 Deducted from bank account on 09/01/24
DO NOT MAIL PAYMTECIET $359 67
. . g PO BOX 16810
Please see back for instructions on writing to us. NEWARK, NJ 07101-6810

4L908101240107858L0011500001000000359L7000000359670






¥20z ‘01 lsquiaideg :ajeq

:Ag panouddy

25 L0LS ang |ejol ¥20¢ ‘1€-1 Isnbny
00°0.$ SUOY
25°1¢% |ejoiqng abeajly sasuadxg
£9°0 X 8ley Jjusiny

9% Sa|IA 10 L

0

0

0

0

0

8¢ 901'0€1 8,00l SURO SWOoH uol=Ryg/eUN0 1E/8
8¢ 7200g) ¥66'6C1 BUIRO SLIoH uojeyg/eulO LE/8
TR abea|iy abeai|y ol woJ aeqq/die] Jo aunienN

Buipuz Buiuuibag
uosuag Jun

Hpoday ssuadxy
pung uonebnip

1911SI( UOIJBAIBSUOY) JBlep\ punolblapun Ajunos sajezuog




202 ‘0l Jequaldes aje(
Ag panoiddy

20798¢$% ang [ejo} 202 ‘| £-1 1SnBny:paiano) poudd

798% sjojew MWd Jo) spue)g Buipjo4

LC0L$ 9[Hog USEAA J81BMA POIISIA

sasuadxy

91'19¢$ Jejoqng abeajiy

290 X 31y alnd

8¥a S8ty [e10 ]

Z9 10022 BE69C ‘00 $9EZUCYH W=iseallnOog) SWOH JelBlWieIN 8¢/Q

a8 6E6'9C ev89C 00 se(eZU09) 35 9 INj SWOoH J8l@WRBIN/RIWUIS 92/8

[4°] 9€8'9Z ¥8.'9¢ 00 $8[eZU09) |BJUSIULON| SWOH uyeH/plodieH L¢/8

£9 2G.'9C 689°0¢ ‘00 $89[EZUOL) [EAUIOULION| SUWOH 8|oys108/uelyo0D/SaW[OH/PIO0ISH 0¢E/8

8¢ 689'92 169'9¢ ‘00 s9jezZUOY) [eJU2OULION| SWOoH UaploH/plogqIeH 61./8

A} 0685'9¢ REG'9Z ‘0D S9jEZU0Y) [BNJUROYLION| SLUOH OL#% 64 ZOMIN GL/8

0S P57 92 yOv'ocC "07) SBZUOD) LIBISOMUUON| SWoH UBIYD0D/92IN0S BUD 6/8

67 YOr'OF G697 ‘07 $9[BZUOL) UISISOMUMON| SwWoH UBIYD0D)/30IN0S U //8

0] 01€'9¢ 04292 ‘00 S9[BZUOY) [eJjUBOYLION| SUWOH QU] pOCA sBWCHMUINLCG 2/8

9t 692°9C S AAT4 00 S9[EZUOLD) UIDISEOULON| SWOH | poo4 sowoWMuiliug  g-1eg-1/Ispalid 1/8
s3I jelolL abeajI abBeo|lin o] | woad ayeq/du] jo aunjeN

Buipuz Buiuuibeg

Hoday asuadx3
ueidiuyos] plaid

29by yueiq

19111S1(] UOIJBAIBSUOY) J9JEeAA Punoibiapun AJunos sajezuon




+20Z ‘60 Jowsldeg :ajeq
:Ag panouddy

uoday asuadx3y

JUB)SISSY dAlRLSIUIWPY
19111S1(] UOIIBAI9SUOY) Ja)epp punoibispun Aluno) sa|ezuos

oz or$ an( [ejol $20Z ‘1£-1 snbny 'palaaon pollsd
sasuadxy

0z 0v$ |ejoiqng abes|inl
190 X 91y Juslngd
09 SN |BIO L

09 LGS'6LL 161641 2rodf =2UO (22130N

1s04)181us) sonsnr Aunod |[empled 0Z/80

sSalliAl 18301 abeain abesjin o | wold ajecydii] jo ainjeN

Bupusz Buiuuibag
soye1s AsjeH




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Manager’s Report
August 2024
On August 1%, | virtually attended the South Central Texas Regional Water Planning Group (SCTRWPG, Region L)
meefing. A copy of the agenda is attached.

On August 2", I met with members of the Rules Committee, geologist, and fegal counsel to discuss the rule workshop
schedule, desired future conditions, and task orders for consultation.

On August 6", I virtually met with Adam Conner, Central Texas Water Supply Planning Lead for Freese and Nichols, Inc.
and members of County Line SUD to discuss potential management strategies they are submitting to SCTRWPG for the
2026 plan in the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District boundaries. These are in draft and are
confidential.

On August 13", 1 virtually met with panel members of the Texas Alliance of Groundwater District (TAGD) Summit panel
presentation to discuss the upcoming panel presentation on Emerging Management Issues for Large-scale Production
Permits. An article from the Texas Water Journal is attached.

On August 19", I met with members of the Rules Committee to discuss rule workshop schedules and timelines.

Then I went to San Antonio to the Texas Alliance of Groundwater Districts fieldtrip to San Antonio Water Systems
Aquifer Storage and Recovery and Desalination Facility, H2Oaks water plant.

On August 20%-22", [ attended the TAGD Annual Summit. I was a presenter on a panel discussing Emerging
Management Issues for Large Scale Production. A copy of the agenda is attached.

On August 23%, T met with James “Jim” Totten General Manager of Lost Pines GCD, and Mrs. Natasha Martin, legal
counsel to discuss an interlocal agreement to share data and the possibility of mitigation over boundary lines.

On August 28", I virtually attended the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Commission meeting. 1 had
volunteered to be on a review panel for a Petition of Inquiry received on Lone Star GCD.

On August 29", 1 virtually attended the Texas Water Foundation, Texas Runs on Water toolkit campaign seminar.

AQUA’s July production was about 29.08 ac-ft which is about 6.97% of the monthly allowable production.
CRWA’s August production was about 740.62 ac-ft which is about 106.81% of the monthly allowable production.
GBRA’s August production was 45.54 ac-ft which is 3.64% of the monthly allowable production.

SAWS August production was about 851,80 ac-ft which is about 87.45% of the monthly allowable production.
SSLGC’s August production was about 1567.69 ac-ft which is about 97.19% of the monthly allowable production.

The Palmer Drought Index, as of August 27, 2024, indicates that the District is currently under no drought conditions. The
latest drought map shows overall increases in drought conditions in Western Texas in the week of September 09, 2024.



NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING OF THE
SOUTH CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL
WATER PLANNING GROUP

TAKE NOTICE that a meeting of the South-Central Texas Regional Water Planning Group (SCTRWPG} as established by the
Texas Water Development Board will be held on Thursday, August 1, 2024 at 9:30 AM both in person and virtually. The in-
person meeting will be held at the San Antonio Water System's Customer Service Building, Room CR-145, 2800 US Hwy
281 North, San Antonio, TX 78212, You can attend virtually on WebEx at
https://saws.webex.cam/saws/|.php?MTID=m23e3d61939dadh5{c2ef0aebeb50f466. The planning group members will

consider and may take action regardiﬁg:

1,

2.

10.
11
12.

13.

{9:30 AM) Roll-Call
Public Comment (Limited to 3 minutes)

Approval of the Minutes from the Previous Meeting of the South-Central Texas Regional Water Planning
Group {SCTRWPG)

Status Reports and Communications by TWDB

Status Reports and Communications Related to Regional Water Planning including reports by the Chair,
Regional Liaisons, Groundwater Management Area Representatives, and Members of the Planning Group

Consideration and Appropriate Action Regarding Briefings on Workgroup Activities:
a. Chapter 8 Policy and Legislative Recommendations Workgroup
b. Rural and Community Qutreach Workgroup

Consideration and Appropriate Action Regarding Presentation by Technical Consultant Regarding
Schedule and Progress Update

Consideration and Appropriate Action for the Technical Consultant to Evaluate Weather Modification as a
New Water Management Strategy

Consideration and Appropriate Action Regarding Designation of the Nueces River Authority as a
Wholesale Water Provider (WWP) as defined in 31 TAC §357.10(44) for Regional Water Planning
Purposes

Discussion and Appropriate Action Regarding the Establishment of Additional Subcommittees
Schedule and Potential Agenda ltems for the Next Meeting of the SCTRWPG
Public Comment {Limited to 3 minutes)

Adjourn

Comments and submissions may be submitted through email to ccastillo@sariverauthority.org and include “Region L
South Central Texas Water Planning Group Meeting Public Comment” in the subject line of the email. Any written
documentation can be sent to Tim Andruss, Chair, South Central Texas Regional Water Planning Group, c¢/o San Antonio
River Authority, Attn: Caye Castillo, 100 E. Guenther Street, San Antonio, TX 78204. Please direct any questions to Caye
Castillo at (210} 302-4258, ccastillo@sariverauthority.org.



Journal

/olume 15 Number 1 | 2024




» lTexas

Journal

Volume 15, Number 1

ISSN 2160-5319

texaswaterjournal.org

THE TEXAS WATER JOURNAL is an online, peer-reviewed, and indexed journal devored to rhe timely consideration

of Texas water resources management, research, and policy issues. The journal provides in-depth analysis of Texas water

PCSOLHTCCS nmnagcmcnt and },'!(.)]iCi(‘S FE'U!!E H3 nlLlEEidiSCiPlillﬂl'}’ PCI’SPCCEiVC that il‘lthI’ﬂtCS scienee, C‘Hgiil(\.’[iﬂg, l‘d“’, pt(}ﬂ[lil]g,

and other disciplines. It also provides updates on key stare legislation and policy changes by Texas adminiscrative agencies.

For more information on the Texas Water Journal as well as our policies and submission guidelines, please visir

rexaswarerjournal.org. As a 501{c}(3} nonprofit organization, the Texas Warer Journal needs your support to provide Texas

with an open-accessed, peer-reviewed publication dhar focuses on Texas water. Please consider donating,
R

Editor-in-Chief
Todd H. Vortteler, Ph.D.
Collaborative Water Resolution LLC
Managing Ediror
Vacant

Layo ut Editor
Sarah L. Richardson

Texas Water Resources Insciture

Editorial Board
Kathy A, Alexander, Ph.D.

Texas Commission on Environmental Guality

Gabricl B. Collins, 1.D.
Baker Institute for Public Policy
Nelun Fernando, Ph.D.
Texas Water Development Board
Ken Kramer, Ph.D.
Lone Star Chapter of the Sicrra Club
Dorina Murgulet, Ph.D.

Texas A&M Universiey-Corpus Christi
Ken A, Rainwater, Ph.D.
Texas Tech U niversicy
Rasario B Sanchez, Ph.D.

TCX‘ELS W,‘JECJ' I{CSOLI[’CQS Insritute

Michael H. Young, Ph.D.
The University of Texas at Austin

4

Texas Water
Resources Institute

treilie eeery dop cotrl
== BUREAU OF
EcoNnomic
GEOLOGY

The Texas Water Journal is published in cooperation with
the Texas Water Resources Institute, part of Texas A&M
AgriLife Rescarch, the Texas A&M Agrilife Extension
Service, and the College of Agriculture and Life Sciences
at Texas A&M University and the Burcau of Economic
Geology in the Jackson School of Geosciences ar The
University of Texas at Austin,

DOAJ
seal

The Texas Water Journal is indexed by Scopus, Google

Scholar, and the Directory of Open Access lournals,

Cover phote:
The Narrows on dhe Blanco River.

©2020 Erich Ross Schlegel, Texas Warer Foundation.



Texas Water Journal
Volume 15, Number 1, March 19, 2024
Pages 34-54

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues
at the Forefront of Large-scale Production from
a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Steven C. Young!*, Carlos Rubinstein?, and Russell Johnson?

Abstrace: Continuing population growth, increasing demands for warer, and declining water availability are statewide water
concerns in Texas, The development and movement of water from where it is located to where it is needed entails benefies to the
receiving area and concerns for the area of origin, The Vista Ridge Project serves as an on-point example and case study of issucs
that will be revisiced with future large warer projects across Texas, Water level declines in existing wells caused by production from
the Vista Ridge well field was a focus of significant public discussion in 2022, including Texas House and Senace interim session
hearings. This paper spotlights groundwater management issues related to the Vista Ridge Project, including well mitigations
impacts from groundwnter pmductinn ACIDSS grmmdwatﬁ‘r conservation district boundarices; mc;mingﬁxl cansideration of nine
factors in Texas Water Code § 360.108 (d); achieving the balance between groundwarer production and conservation in Texas
Water Code § 36.108 (d-2); protection of property rights; and the need for both good science and good science communication
during the joint-planning process,

Keywords: Mitigation, property rights, fair share, modcked available groundwater, Groundwater Management Avea 12, Post
Oak Savannah (_}CE), Lost Pines GCD, Vista Ridge, socioeconomic impacts, desired future conditions

¢ Principal Geoscientist, INTERA Incorporated, Austin, TX

2 Principal of RSAH, O, LLC and a former Chairman of the Texas "\Vm,l Development Board and Commissioner of the Texas Commission
on Environmental Quallry

3 Of Counsel, MeGinnis Lochridge, Austin, TX

* Corresponding author: syoung@intera.com

Received 14 June 2023, Accepred 20 December 2023, Published online 19 March 2024,

Citation: Young SC, Rubinstein C, and Johnson R. 2024. Case Study of Groundwarer Management Issues ar the Forefrone of Large scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project. Texas Water Journal. 15(1}:34-54. Available from: hetps://dot.org/10.21423/
twivl9i1.7161.

© 2024 Steven C. Young, Carlos Rubinstein, and Russell Johnson. This work is licensed under the Creative Commons Araribution 4.0

[nternational License. To view a copy of this license. visit hups://creativecommons.orgflicenses/by/4.0/ or visit the TW} websire.




Terms used in paper

Acronym/Initialism

Descriptive Name

affyr acre-feet per year
bgs below ground surface
BVGCD Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District
DFC(s) desired future condition(s)
ft feet
fe2/day square feet per day
GAM(s) groundwater availability model(s)
1 GCD(s) groundwater conservation district{s)
GMA(s) groundwater management area(s)
GULF Guif Coast Land Subsidence and Groundwater-Flow
GWAP Groundwater Assistance Program
HB House Bil
LPGCD Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation District
MAG(s) modeled available groundwater(s)
PDL protective drawdown limits
POSGCD Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
SAWS ‘San Antonio Water System
TCEQ Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
TWC Texas Water Code
TWDB Texas Water Development Board
usc United States Code




36

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

INTRODUCTION

The 2022 Texas state water plan predicts that Texas’s popu-
larion will increase 73% between 2020 and 2070 (Texas Warter
Development Board [TWDB]. 2022). During this 50-year
period, the demand for municipal water will increase 66%,
or approximately 3.3 million acre-feet per year {affyr). The
existing supply of water is projected 1o decline by 18% over
the same period, primarily duc to statewide aquifer depletion
(TWDB. 2022). More than 25% of the growth in wawer usage
is projecred to oceur in four Texas regional water planning
groups. The water demand for these four regional warer plan-
ning groups, which encompass the cities of Dallas, Fort Worth,
Houston, San Antonio, and Austin, is projected ro increase 2.5
million affyr from 2020 co 2070 (TWDB, 2022).

The complexity of moving water to where it is needed will be

a key factor in meeting Texass unprecedented economic and
population growth. Projects that move water from where ir is
located to where it is needed have socioeconomic impacts to
both the recciving area as well as the arca of origin. Updat-
ed groundwater modeling and proper construction of these
models are indispensable to propetly consider the benefits and
impacts from such projects.

This paper presents a case study of the Vista Ridge Proj-

cct—a large groundwater export project in Burleson Coun-

ty that iHustrates the controversics, uncertaintics, impacrs,
and expenses associated with moving large volumes of ground-
water to where it is needed in Texas and spotlights issues char
will likely be of concern rclared o other Texas groundwater
development projects in the near furure. These issues include:
* The potential importance of a fair share doctrine to
the protection of property rights, the production of
groundwater, and the conservation of groundwater in
place (see section elaborating on this ropic);

» Consideration of permitted production as a factor when

glaborating on this ropic);

» Considerarion of local socioeconomic impacts from the
groundwater’s area of origin when developing DFCs (see
section claborating on this topic):

Potential benefits from presenting spatial and temporal
distributions of drawdowns and warer levels generated by
groundwater availability model (GAM) simulacions used
to develop DFCs (see section claborating on this ropich

* Recognition of uncereainey in GAM  predicrions of

drawdown and DFCs (see secrion claborating on this
topic); and

» Understanding the limitations of modeled available
groundwater (MAG) as an indicator for assessing the
achievement of a DFC {see section_claboraring on this

ropich.

Given thar groundwaser water supply projects like the Vista
Ridge Projecrt are heing considered across Texas, groundwarer
decision makers would benefir from a familiarization with the
groundwarer issucs, science, modeling, and mirigating facrors
associated with the Vista Ridge Project. Addivionally, now that
the 88th Texas Legislature has passed bills partly informed by
the experiences and actions fo mirigate impacts from ground-
water production for transport—such as the Vista Ridge
Project—this case study should assist GCDs with developing
mitigation policies and accomplishing their groundwater man-
agement goals.

The case study is m‘gﬂnizcd into five additional sections.
Section I provides information on the hydrogeology and
production associated with the Vista Ridge well ficld and on
the Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation Discrice
(POSGCD) management strategies most refevant to permit-
ting and regulating Vista Ridge. Scction 1T discusses several of
the complex issues associated with the Vista Ridge Project from
the perspectives associated with the responsibilities assigned to
GCDs and groundwater management arcas (GMAs). Section
IV provides recommendations for improving the management
of the joint planning process for adopting DFCs, Section V
provides references, and Section VI provides the attachment.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Vista Ridge Project

The Vista Ridge Project is in westera Burleson County with-
in a few miles of the Lee County border. In 2020, the Vista
Ridge Project began producing 50,000-55,000 af/yr from the
Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer and transporting it through a 142-mile
pipeline to San Antonio. Because of impacts on the water levels
in existing wells, the Vista Ridge Project was a focus of signif-
icant public discussion in 2022, including Texas House and
Senate interim session hearings, front-page newspaper articles,
GMA 12 meetings, and GCD meetings. These discussions
and concerns led to consideration of several bills attempring
to address the issucs during the 88th Texas legislative session.

Hydrogeological Conditions

Vista Ridge production occurs from the deep confined por-
tion of the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer. The Carrizo-Wilcox Aqui-
fer is composed of four geologic units, which from youngest o
oldest (or from shallowest to deepest) are the Carrizo, Calvert
Bluff, Simsboro, and Hooper aquifers. The Vista Ridge wells
are completed in the Cartizo and Simsboro aquifers.

Figure 1 shows the locations of the Vista Ridge welt ficld and
areas where the four grologic units outcrop ar ground surface.
Figure 2 shows a vertical cross scction of the Carrizo-Wilcox
Aquifer along a wansect that hegins in Milam County and

] i fok - T . -
s, i\"r')itgg'g'gg' P, Mgg]!ﬁg:‘r_.{\ i




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project 37

HIRL T

Falls

Hell

Wi Valiny

Brazos

ST

ey

[ERUERT

Burleson

) Mg

Leiz A f gt il
Hooper Qutcrop E ] vista Ridge Well Field
L Bastop Simsboro Outgrop | | Vista Ridge Leass Area

Calvert Bluff Qutcrop
= Carrizo Outcrop

Cross Section Transect

Figure 1. Location of the Vista Ridge well field and the outcrops of the four geclogic
units that comprise the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer (outcrop is where the aquifer intersects
the ground suiface),

1000

NwW “ Milam County | Burleson County -+ qQa SE
—— 1 fand surface
0 TR T T T ey e o L~
U!/e” -
i L N
- € 3quife,,
=1
~1000 2
= &
] 4 -
E e %
£ .2000 ® 2
5 s Carrizo Water Lovel 2019 2
§ ~ = Carrizo Water Level 2022 i
&
u;_‘j -3000 -~ Simsboro Water Level 2019 3
reeee Simshoro Water bevel 2022 o
=)
i
4000 * Vista Ridge well field Is located [
24~ 25 miles down dip. Pway .
o , Oy,
Carsize wellss 15,0080 ALY %"On
Stmclzor wiells: A0,H3% AFY
-5000

a 5 10 i5 20 25 30 35
Distance Down Dip {miles}

Figure 2, Vertical crass section along Transect A-A" in Figure 1 showing the four geological units that comprise the
Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer; the locations of several geologic faults, the Vista Ridge wells, and the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifer
water levels in 2019 and 2022.

i RV o n
o bonrenad, Vodome 15,

wilver




28 Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

passes through the Vista Ridge well field in Burleson County.
The cross section shows that the Cuarrizo-Wilcox Aquifer dips
toward the southeast and occurs at increasingly deeper depths
roward the Gulf Coast. At the Vista Ridge well field, the rops
of the Carrizo and the Simsbhoro aquifers occur ar approximare-
ly 800 and 2,000 feev {fr} below ground surface (bgs), respec-
tively. Also shown in Figure 2 are 2019 and 2022 warer fevel
surfaces for the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers. A warer level
surface represents the height that water will rise in a well as
a result of the hydraulic pressure in the aquifer. Warer level
is recorded relative to sea level and has the units of feet above
mean sea level.

Aquifer systems can he cacegorized as cither unconfined or
confined. Unconfined aquifer conditions exist where the warer
level in a well occurs below the top of the aquifer, typically ac
aquifer outerops. Confined aquifer condirions exist where the
water level in a well occurs above the top of the aquifer. In an
unconfined aquifer, a decline in a well's warer level represents
a reduction in the saturated thickness of the aquifer caused
by removal of water from the pore spaces between the aqui-
fer sands and clays. In a confined aquifer, a decline in a well’s
water level represents a change in the hydraulic pressure of the
groundwater in a fully-saturared aquifer. If sufficient deaw-
down oceurs, a confined aquifer system will transicion from a
confined aquifer into an unconfined aquifer.

The water tevels in Figure 2 show that despite drawdowns of
hundreds of feet in both the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers in
2022, both aquifers remain fully saturated with water levels in
the production wells vceurring scveral hundred feet above the
rop of their respective aquifer.

Operation Permits, Wells, and Groundwater
Production

The Vista Ridge production permit is associated with 29,026
acres of leased water rights, which under POSGCD rules allow
a maximum annual production of 58,052 affyr. The Vista
Ridge permit has an annual production cap of 95,835 aflyr,
which consists of 15,000 affyr from the Carrizo Aquifer and
40,835 atlyr from the Simsboro Aquifer.

Vista Ridge began testing che well field and transmission sys-
tem in late 2019. Delivery of groundwater to the San Antonio
Water Systemn (SAWS) started in April 2020, Groundwater
production occurs from 18 wells: nine wells pump the Carrizo
Aquifer, and another nine wells pump the Simsboro Aquifer.
The nine Carrizo Aquifer wells have screened intervals thar
span the interval from abour 800 ro 1,250 fr bgs. The nine
Simsbora Aquifer wells have screened intervals thar span the
interval from abour 2,200 to 2,700 ft bgs. Through the end of

2022, the maximum permitted pumping rares for the Carrizo
Aquifer and Simsboro Aquifer wells were 1,200 and 3,000 gal-

lD[lS por l]]il‘ltiEC. I'CSPCCﬁ\-’C]}’.

Fiovas YWaror fowrnnd, Yerdupme

Dirawdowns Generated from 2 Years of Vista Ridge
Production

Figures 3 and 4 show drawdowns for the first 2 years of Vista
Ridge production in the Carrizo and Simsboro aguifers, respec-
tively. The drawdown contours were generated by interpolating
warer fevel changes {(drawdown) beeween water levels measured
prior o Vista Ridges 2020 production and in carly 2022,
Within the well field, the drawdawns are approximately 400
and 300 ft in the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers, respectively.
The cones of depression created by che Vista Ridge pumping
in the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers extend approximarely 15
and 25 miles into Lec County, respectively.

Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation
District

Groundwater production from the Vista Ridge Project is per-
mitted by the POSGCD. The POSGCD was creared in Milam
and Burleson counties by House Bill (HB) 1784 in 2001 and a
Jocal confirmation clection in November 2002, The POSGCD
is a member of GMA 12, which sets DDFCs for the Carrizo and
Simshoro aquifers. POSGCD is bardered by two other GCDs
that are members of GMA 12: Lost Pines GCD (LPGCD)
to the southwest and Brazos Valley GCD (BVGCD) o the
northeast, This sccrion discusses several POSGCD manage-
ment strategics and programs relevant to addressing impaces
from large production projects such as the Vista Ridge Project.

Managenient Strategy: Management Zones and
Muanagement Areas

The POSGCD allows production up to a total of 2 atfyr
for each acre tied to the permit application. This maximum
production is allowed until changes in aquifer condirions or
groundwater fevels mandate curailment of permitted pro-
ducrion, Allocations of water per acre are not uncommon in
water management and permitting. For evaluating and man-
aging groundwater resources, POSGCD has assigned cach of
its aquifers to a separare management zone and has subdivided
the management zones into management areas. POSGCD has
adapted DFCs for the Carrizo and Simsboro aquiters thar are
in Table 1. The DFCs represent the average predicred draw-
down across the entire aquifer from January 2011 to January
2070. The protective drawdown limits (PDLs) in Table 1 were
derived using the same methodology and GAM simulations
used to determine DEFCs, except the management areas cov-
er only a portion of the aquifer instead of the entire aquifer.
POSGCD created the PDLs to address concerns about poten-
tial problems with enforcing DFC compliance caused by the

absence of monitoring wells across large areas of the aquifer.



Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale 39
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

{1vista Ridge Well Figld

Confined Carrizo Aquifer
2022 Monitoring Wells
X GWAP Well
==== Drawdown Conlour
| === Cross Section Transecl

il sm
Fient st

frazng

Figure 3. Contours of drawdown in the Carrizo Aquifer that occurred
from 2019 to 2022 based on interpolation of measured water level
data. Also shown are the location of 92 Carrizo Aquifer wells that Post
Qak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District assisted through its
Groundwater Assistance Program (GWAP),

=1 [] Vista Ridge Well Field
[ simsborn Outcrop
‘Confined Simsboro Aquifer
7 2022 Monitoring Wells
» GWAP Well
= [rawdown Contour
— Cross Section Transact

Deaeon

wanhinglea

S

4 . i

Figure 4. Contours of drawdown in the Simsboro Aquifer that occurred
from 2019 to 2022 based on interpolation of measured water level data.




40

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Table 1. Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District desired future conclitions (DFCs)
and protective drawdown limits {PDLs) for the Carrizo and Simsboro aguifers.

Biflang

Gastrop

Aquifer Average drawdown January 2011-December 2069
management DEC for PDL for PDL for
Zone entire aquifer Management Area 1 | Management Area 2
Carrizo 146 75 i75
Simsboro 278 81 335
0 Moniloring Wells

5 [ Vista Ridge Well Field

+ Exempt Wells
< Permitied Wells
Carrizo Aquifer
. Management Area 1
‘Management Area 2

TRV

Brazos <

e

Washington

Figure 5. Areal extend of the Carrizo Aquifer and bwo management areas
associated with Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
desired future conditions and protective drawdown limits,

Figure 5 shows the management arens associated with the two
PDLs for the Carrizo Aquifer. Both management areas have
menitoring wells spatially distributed throughout the cntire

area.
1Wmmgeme:7t Snwregy: Curtailinent qf Production

POSGCD rules that govern reductions in permitted produc-
tion arve summarized as follows:

» Preventing DFCy or PDLs excecdances: POSGCD  has
three threshold levels (1, 2, and 3} to gage compliance

o DFCs and PDLs. Each incrcasing chreshold tevel
provides for an increased level of response. POSGCD has
rules o authorize the development of plans for reducing
permitted production when threshold fevel 3 has heen

vty Vesdope 15, B0

exceeded. Threshold level 3 is reached when 73% of a
DFC or a PDL has been achieved.

Restoration of aguifer conditions afier an unreasonable
impact: Before granting or denying a permit, Texas
Water Cade (TWC) § 36.113 (d) (2) requires GCDs ¢o

consider if the permirteed production would unreasonably

[

affece existing groundwater and surface water resources or
existing, permit holders. POSGCD defines unreasonable
Rule 16.4.6 (POSGCD, 2023a).
POSGCD considers the impacts from an aggregate

their

impacts  in

of wells associated with one or more permits to be
unreasonable if pumping from the aggregated wells by
themselves and not part of the aggregate of permitted
wells caused by any one of several conditions. For the
confined aquifer condittons occurring at the Vista Ridge




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

41

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project -

Project, POSGCD Rule 16.4.6 states unreasonable
tmpacts 0 groundwater are defined as more than a 100-
foor reduction and more than a 40% reduction in water
level ;11?0\@ the top of the aquifer being pumped along any
part of the boundary of the permic’s property.,

Groundwater Assistance Prograin

POSGCD began developing its Groundwarer Assistance
Program (GWAP) in carly 2016, reccived public comment
throughour 2017, and adopeed the program on January 9,
2018, The primary objective of GWAP is to predict and pro-
vide corrective action for landowners whose wells experience
water level declines below the pump due to regional pumping
in GMA 12, Corrective actions provided by GWAD include,
but are not limited to, lowering a pump in a well, modifying
the construction of an existing well, or drilling a new well, In
most cases, these actions resulr in the pump being serac a depth
that is below the anticipated 30-year water level dectine. To be
eligible for funding under GWAD, a well must be a low eapacity
non-exempt well or an exempt well. Another eligibilicy require-
ment for GWADP assistance is that che landowner commits to
the well becoming a part of the POSGCD monitoring pro-
gram. As of December 2022, GWAP had addyessed 100 wells,
Out of these 100 wells, 92 are Carrivo Aquifer wells, the loca-
tions of which arc shown in Figure 3

TEXAS WATER CODE § 36.0015 (b)
REQUIREMENTS OF GROUNDWATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICTS

Per TWC § 36.0015 (b), GCDs have the responsibility “to
proteet praperty rights, balance the conservation and develop-
ment of groundwater to meer the needs of this stare, and use
the best availabie scicnce in the conservation and development

rights is the evalution of case law regarding groundwater as a
property right. For that reason, this paper includes Arrachment
A, which provides a historical account of case law on the awn-
ership of groundwacer in Texas.

Property Right Issues Raised by Well Owners Affected
by Vista Ridge Praduction

The Vista Ridge Project gained increased statewide arcen-
tion with an August 2021 Texas Tribunc article entitled Cen-
tral Texas Landowners Blame SAWS Vista Ridge Pipeline for Dry
Wells (Douglas, 2021}, The article states that dozens of land-
owners in LPGCD have lowered their water pumps because of
declines in water levels attributed to the Vista Ridge Project.
Public hearings were conducred by the Texas House Commit-
tee on Natural Resources on Auguse 24, 2022, and by the Texas
Senate Committee on Warer, Agriculture & Rural Afhairs on
November 16, 2022, During both hearings, rural landowners
from LPGCD voiced complaints over the Vista Ridge Proj-
cet. The complaints included a loss of property rights caused
by lower water levels, the financial burden of lowering pumps,
no access to a well assistance program similar to POSGCD’s
GWAR no evaluation of local socioceconomic impacts of Vista
Ridge permits as part of the DFC process, and the injustice of
water marketers profiting at the expense of rural landowners.

During the 2022 House interim session hearing, the LPG-
CD president’s concern regarding the impacts of the Vista
Ridge Project on Lee County was conveyed in the testimony:
“One oprion is for us [ie, LPGCDY 1o file a petition with
TCEQ asserting that Post Oak is not properly managing their
groundwater, not considering unreasonable impacts, nor bal-
ancing groundwater production with conservation as required
by starure, Though Chapter 36 s a grear tool to assist districts
in managing cheir groundwater resources in a fair and equitable

manancy, much is open to interpretation” (Texas House Com-
mittee on Natural Resources, 2022, 4:34:42).

of graundwater through rules” (TWC § 36, 2023. § 36.0015
b)), Per TWC § 36.108 (d-2), within a GMA, GCDs are
required to adopt DFCs that “provide a batance between the
highest practicable level of groundwater production and the
conservation, prescrvation, protection, recharging, and preven-
tion of waste of groundwarer and control of subsidence in the

management area” (TWC § 36, 2023, § 36.0038 (d-2)).

Protect Property Rights

TWC § 36.002 recognizes that landowners own the ground-
water below the surface of their land as real property, The TWC
also authorizes GCDs to regulate the drilling and operation
of wells within cheir jurisdiction. Despite assigning, the GCD
responsibilities to protect property rights, the TWC does not
clearly articulate whae that protection entails, much less how it
should be implemented. Relevant to any discussion of property

oo bl

Potentinl Importance of a Fair Share Doctrine to

the Protection of Property Rights, the Production of
Groundwater, and the Conservation of Groundwater
in Place

Fair share is relevant to the discussion of the protection of
property rights since the opinion in Edwards Aqueifer Autherity
. Day (2012). Case law has established that groundwater s a
vested right and regulation cannor unreasonably deprive land-
owiers of their vested groundwarer rights without just com-
pensation. However, because fair share has not been explicitly
applied in evaluating GCD regulations and is not defined in
TWC § 36, the application of fair share to permit decisions
remains unexplained by the courts. Consequently, a landown-
er’s property right to prescrve, protect, and produce ground-

Vol




42

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

water is for all practical purposes determined by the rules of
capture or the groundwarer rules of a GCD or of a conserva-
tion diserict.

Per TWC § 36.0015, GCDs arc required to use the best
available science to develop rules associated with conservation
and development of groundwater {TWC § 36, 2023). A sen-
sible assumption for TWC § 36.0015 is wa promose similar
and reasonable groundwater rules and by extension similar

protection of property rights for landowners sharing the same
aquifer bur located in adjacent GCDs. Yer the riles developed
by POSGCD and LPGCD to regulate production from the
Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer in Burteson and Lee eounties have suh-
stantial differences. The differences in LPGCD and POSGCD
rules and policies concerning the protection of property and 2
fair share doctrine would seemingly be the basis for the con-
cerns raised by the LPGCD president during the 2022 Legis-
lature interim hearings (Texas House Comumirree on Narural
Resources, 2022, 4:34:42),

The decisions of the courts discussed in Actachment A sug-
gest that the fair share doctrine applicable to mineral owner-

ship and development, if applicd to groundwater, will need to
be modified to account for how groundwater differs from oil/
gas in both its source and uscs. Policies rcgarding a fair share
doctrine for groundwarer property rights should cherefore con-
sider, among other facrors, the following: (1) historic use; (2)
provisions for future use because unlike oil and gas, it is replen-
ished; (3) consequences caused by the use of groundwater, such
as environmental impacts or land subsidence; (4) prevention
of wastes (3) considerations for groundwater’s many uses from
irrigation and industry to drinking and recreation; and {0) just
compensation for a possible taking. Both POSGCD and LPG-
CD have comparable rules that address several of these items,
including well spacing, achicvement of the DFCs, the preven-
rion of waste, consideration of environmental impact, and land
subsidence. For ¢his paper, we have focused on noticeable dif-
ferences between the POSGED and LPGCD rules as related
to protection and production of groundwarer. The comparison
is based on GCD rules that were in existence at the time of
the legislative interim hearings in 2022, Since that cime, LPG-
CD, POSGCD and BYGCD have adopred and are consider-
ing additional rule changes (BYGCD. 2023; LPGCD, 2023;
POSGCD, 20233),

1. Historical use: POSGCD rules recognize historical pro-

duction and provide greater protecdion than do the rules
for non-historical production permitted since the cre-
atton of POSGCD. LPGCD rules do not provide for
permitting of histaric use.

2. Fair appartunity to extract groundwarer: TOSGCD rules
recognize a correlative right of 2 affyr per acre asstgned
to the permit to as the maximum annual production
associated with a permit. The 2 affyr/ac production rate
was adopred by POSGCD primarily to accommodate

e 1
s Warer fournal

irrigation needs for agricultucal use but extends w all
types of permitted use to provide the same property right
regardless of usage. LPGCD does not use a correlarive
right approach in its rules or permitting decisions. LPG-
CD requires the applicant to prove the amount nceded
for the intended use. The applicant then negotiates with
district staff to agree on a pormir amount. If accepred,
the applicarion is then sent to the LPGCD hoard for
approval, or the applicant, if unsacished, can request a
contested case hearing,

3. Reductions in authorized production to prevent wnreason-
able impacts: POSGCD adopted rules regarding unrea-
sonable impacts o help proteer and protect the ground-
water levels at the property boundary near large capacity
well fields. These rules augment POSGCD well spacing
vules and are intended ro discourage a permittee from
disproportionarely concentrating production within a
small portion of the permitted acreage near the property
boundary.

4. Well assistaince/mitigation: Throughout Texas, some per-
mit applicants have volunearily created mitigation pro-
grams to address impacts to existing wells. In POSGCD,
mitigatibn programs with a specifically targeted sct of
landowners were creared and executed by the permirrees
for the Vista Ridge, Blue Water 130, and Sandow Lakes
Properties Prajects. As previously discussed, POSGCD
began using these funds to establish GWAD in 2018, In
LPGCD, Recharge Water LP agreed that the issued per-
mits would require funding a well mitigation program
that can be accessed after Recharge Water LP begins
production. During the House testimony, the LPGCD
president explained that LPGCD had started a program
to reimburse well owners for their mitigation cfforts bur
had terminated it after being threatened with lirigation
by an attorney. At the time of the hearing, LIGCD had
no mitigation program similar to POSGCD’s GWAP
{Texas House Committee on Narural Resources, 2022,
4:29:40),

The comparison of the nwo sets of GCD rules ilustrates the

significant differences in how POSGCD and LPGCD were
managing and regulating groundwaser resources in 2022, The

differences occurred despite the two GCDs overlying the same
aquifers and the TWC requirements to use best available sci-
ence in rulemaking and to protect property rights. The notable
differences in rules beeween the two GCDs likely causes land-
owners in both GCDs to question whether their GCL is appro-
priatcly protecting their property rights when a large well field
is permitted near their well(s). In the case of the Vista Ridge
well field, a disproportionate number of LPGCD landowners
as compared o POSGCD landowners vacalized their discon-
tentment with the Vista Ridge Project. Based on testimonies,

the LPGCD president’s and LPGCD) landowners’ concerns go




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

43

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

beyond the lack of a well assistance program like POSGCD
and includes several of the components of a fair share doctrine
for groundwater that have been previously discussed.

Enzerging Issues

As the demand for groundwarer in central Texas increases,
the question of how to balance property rights and manage
aroundwater production and protection will grow increasingly
more contentious. The evelution of statutes and rules related
to protecting, property rights could address a number of issues,
including the following:

* Whether the courts will apply the fair share doctrine
to cheir evaluations of production authorizations and
permits;

» Whar role the Legislacure will play in outdining the
atthority of groundwarer districes ro regulare; and

s How GCD rules will evolve to stike an appropriace
balance  between  producing  and  protecting  the

groundwarer with appropriate consideration for the
protection of historical use, current use, and future
use, while recognizing the vested property rights of the
landowners and a responsibility to meet the needs of the
stife.

Balance the Conservation and Development of
Groundwater to Meet the Needs of the State

TWC § 36.0015 {b) rasks GCDs with the responsibility to
balance the conservation and development of groundwarer to
nieet the needs of the state of Texas, This responsibility overlaps
with responsibitities in TWC § 36.108 (d-2), which requires
GMAs to adopr DFCs thar "must provide a balance between
the highest practicable level of groundwater production and
the conscrvacion, prescrvation, protection, recharging, and
prevention of waste of groundwater and control of subsidence
in the management arca” (LWC § 36, 2023, § 36.108 (d-2)).

This section discusses some of the challenges faced by GMAs

and GCDs when achieving these balancing requirements.
Overview of the Joint Planning Process

The joint planning process requires GMAs ta adopt DFCs
every 3 years. TWC § 36.001 defines DFCs as a “quantitarive
description, adopred in accordance with Secrion 36,108, of the
desired condition of the groundwater resources in a manage-
ment area at one or more specified future times” (TWC § 36,
2023, §.36.001 (30)). TWDB equates a DFC as a represenra-

tion of “a management goal thac caprures the philosophy and

policies addressing how an aquiter will be managed” (Mace gx
al., 2006, p. 3; Mace et al., 2008, p. 3). After a GMA adoprs
its DFCs, TWC § 36.1084 {b) requires TWDD to determine a

Whigsr lonraal, W

MAG for cach managemenr area thar the districts have adopred
a DFC (TWC § 36, 2023). A MAG is defined as “the amount

of water that may be produced on an average annual basis o

achieve a desired future condition established under Section
36.108" (TWC § 36, 2023, § 36,001 (290}, The MAGs are

l'!‘lCl] i!}COl‘pOl'ﬂTCC{ into rcgioﬂal WRLcr PlﬂllS ﬁ[ld HS(’;‘C{ w dcr(fl'“

mine future available water and as part of the evaluation to
determine if a water project is eligible for financial assistance

from the State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT).

Consideration of Permitted Production as a Factor
When Developing DFCs

Like many other GMAs, GMA 12 used GAM simulations to
predict drawdewn impacts caused by different future pumping
scenarios to help evaluate DFCs, After 20 GAM simulations,
GMA 12 selected Run 5-19 in November 2021 for developing
and justifying DFCs (Danicl B. Srephens & Associares et al.,
2022: POSGED, 2023b). Most of the GMA 12 future pump-

ing scenarios, including Run 5-19, were based on a comhina-

tion of permirted and anticipared pumping.

Prior ro adopting GAM Run 5-19, POSGCD discovered
that (GAM simulations that incorporated Vista Ridge's full per-
mitted production of 15,000 affyr from the Catrizo Aquifer
predicted what POSGCD deemed as an undesirable amount
of drawdown in about 140 Carrizo Aquifer wells in Burdeson
County (INTERA Incorporated, 20205 INTERA Incorporat-
ed, 20214, 20210 POSGCL), 2021h, 20216 Wise, 2021), Ta

reduce the Vista Ridge pumping o a level that would achieve

a balance between development and conservation, POSGCD
proposed to GMA 12 that Vista Ridge reduce Vista Ridge max-
imum production in the Carrizo Aquifer from 15,000 alfyr to
about 000 alflyr, in the GAM, so thar the maximum total
Carrizo Aquifer production in POSGCD would be reduced
from 18,200 atfyr to abour 12,000 af/yr (INTERA Incorporac-
ed, 2021a). During their meeting on Januvary 19, 2021, GMA
12 voted 41 (with POSGCE opposing) w not only to main-
tain Carrizo Aquifer pumping rate in the GAM simulatons
at 15,000 affyr for the Vista Ridge Project but to keep that
pumping rate until 2070, which is 18 years beyond when the
40-year Vista Ridge permit expires (GMA 12, 2021).

To justdfy their request to represent Vista Ridge Carrizo
Aquifer production as 9,000 affyr in the GAM simulations
instead of the permitted production of 19,000 affyr, POSGCD
(20214, 2021b) argued that: (1) there are no requirements in
the TWC o include all permitted production in the GAM
DEC simulations; (2) POSGCI) had developed DFCs for the

Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer primarily using spreadshect caleula-

tions with minimal refiance on GAM simulations and permit-
ted production amounts in previous joint planning cycles; (3)
the GAM simulations predicted that Vista Ridge’s production
of 15,000 affyr from the Carrize Aquifer would lower water




a4

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifes: The Vista Ridge Project

levels below pump clevations in an objectionable number of
exempt wells; and (4) a reduction in the drawdowns simulared
from a Vista Ridge production amount of 15,000 affyr from
the Carriza Aquifer is wartanted In order to achieve the balance
required in TWC § 36,108 {d-2) (POSGCD. 2021b, 2021c;
Wise, 2021},

During 2020 and 2021, GMA 12 had multiple discussions
abour whether all of Vista Ridge Project permitted production
in the Carrizo Aquifer should be included in GAM DFC simu-
fations. Several GCDs voiced concerns about legal action from
Vista Ridge it GMA 12 did not include the full Vista Ridge
production. Both BVGCID (2021) and Vista Ridge Blue Water
(Tewrill & Waldyop, 2020) sene letters to POSGCD o explain
the rationale for kecping the Vista Ridge Carvizo Aquiter pro-
duction at 15,000 affyr in the GAM simulations, Below are
excerpts from their letters:

“To that end, it is essential that the 15,000 acre-feet of
known, permitted Carriza Aquifer production for the
Vista Ridge Projectbe included in the model inpucin this
DEC/MAG planaing cycle to comply with the legal re-
quirements of Chapter 36" (Terrill & Waldrop, 2020).
“The desired furure conditions {DFCs") adopred un-
der Secrion 36.108 of the Texas Warer Code, are a

joint planning tool of the management area that muse

include in ies planning numbers the groundwarer
permits issued by cach groundwater districr that arc
currently in effect, as well as known production.

The request of Post Oak Groundwater Conservation
Disticr (POSGCD) o use a Groundwacer Availability
Model ("GAM™) run that does not include all known
permitting and production in all districts is not only
troubling for transparency and accuracy issues, bat also
for the precedence that it sets in the GMA of nort ac-
knowledging cach district’s local permitting. Although
POSGCD this time is voluntarily asking GMA 12 wo
disregard permits that iv has issued, it is concerning
that the precedent would be set for the permits issued
by the canstituent districts ro be involuntasily disre-

garded by the GMA in the furwe” (BVGCD, 2021).

Consideration of Local Socieeconomic Impacts from
the Groundwater’s Arvea of Origin When Developiug
DFCs

The TWC lists two key requirements for developing DFCs,
TWC § 36,108 {d) scates thar the districes shall consider nine
factors when developing the DFCs, and TWC § 36.108 (d-2)
staces that DFCs “must provide a balance between che highest
practicable fevel of groundwater production and the conserva-
tion, preservation, protection, recharging, and prevention of

G
vae Warer fournad,

waste of groundwater and control of subsidence” (TWC § 36,
2023, § 36,108 (d-2)).

During the House and Senate public hearings concerning
Vista Ridge and during GMA 12 meetings, LPGCD land-

awners cxpressed concerns thar GMA 12 was not adequately

considering the nine factors. A specific concern was an alleged
inadequate consideration of the sociveconamic impact ro exist-
ing exempr wells and specifically those wells near Vista Ridge.
As discussed in a recent Environment Defense Fund repore
(Rubinstein & Puie-Williams, 2023), GMA 12 and most other
GMAs met the TWC requirement for considering the socio-
cconomic impacts by presenting the TWDB socioeconomic

impacts for regional water planning groups, which focuses an
the impacts of not meeting the identified warter needs in their
regional water plans.

A criticisin of using the TWDDB sociocconomic analysis is
thar it does not address the sociceconomic impacts associat-
ed with declining aquifer levels from increased groundwarter
pumping and drought, which can result in local socioeconomic
consequences, such as impacts to groundwater wells or aquifer
interactions with surface water, As a result, the TWDB analysis
is not dircctly applicable for evaluating the differences in socio-
cconomic impacts associated with different DFCs, including
impacrs fo existing wells, An alternative or supplement to using
the TWDB sociceconomic analysis is one that considers local-
scale impacts resulting from the water level changes predicted
by the DFC GAM simulation. One such approach is discussed
by Thompson ct al. (2020), who describe a methodology thac
includes evaluating the increased costs associared with lower-
ing pumps, replacing pumps, and operating pumps as water
levels in existing wells decline over time because of regional
2021¢) pre-
sented their case to GMA 12 to reduce the Vista Ridge Carrizo
Aquifer pumping in the GAM simulations, their evaluation
weas simitar to that of Thompsen cral. (2020). POSGCD pre-

dicted drawdowns at existing wells and identified wells where

pumps would require lowering to maintain the productivity of
the well, The approaches used by Thompson et al. (2020) and
POSGCD for assessing local-scale drawdown-related socioeco-
aomic impaces at individual wells is straightforward and pro-
vides the eype of information thar well owners can understand.
Put another way, the sociocconomic impact analysis cur-
tenty undertaken by GMA 12 and other GMAs thus far is
a one-way consideration of how insuflicient addicional water
supply development impacts the area of need. As reflected in
this paper, and certainly a central consideration, the impacts
to the area of the groundwater origin must be recognized and
quantified as part of a proper assessment of overall socioeco-
nomic impacts, Although not comprehensive, the evaluations
conducied by POSGCD and Thompson et al. (2020 provide
a mechanism to help recognize local-scale impaces that have
been largely ignored by GMA 12 and other GMAs.
3

Wolirne 15 Mumbee |




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

45

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Eumerging Issues

Among the emerging questions at the forefront of ground-
water management issues with TWC § 36.108 (d-2) are:

e What are reasonable criteria for defining a “highest
practicable level of groundwaeer production”?

» Whar are reasonable criteria for evaluating whether DFCs
provide a balance between the opposing ohjectives of
production and pratection of groundwater?

* Should the evaluation of the balance requirement be
determined piccemeal by cach GCD or globally by the
GMA?

Possible drivers in evaluating balance requirements in T™WC
§ 36.108 (d-2) are considerations for the nine factors per TWC
§ 36.108 (d), a fair share doctrine applicable to groundwater,
and mitgation programs. “The last issue may be fast approach-
ing some GMAs, including GMA 12 Wichin 5-10 years,
GMA 12 may have at feast three additional well fictds besides
the Visra Ridges well field thae are within a few miles of a
GCD baundary, exporting groundwacer outside of GMA 12,
These three known projects will export groundwater to a Sam-
sung plant in Taylor, Texas, and to the cities of Geargetown,
Hurtro, and Manor. The oanspore permits for all four water
supply projects will likely exceed 110,000 aflyr—thus, the fees
associated with the passage of HB 3059 during the 88th legis-
fative session cauld be substantial, HB 3059 authorizes 1 GCD
to use fees collected from the export of water to maincain the
operability of wells significanty atteered by groundwater devel-
opment, develop and distribure alternative water supplics, or
conduct aquifer monitoring, dara collection, or science (Kirkle
et al., 2023). An emerging issue that will impact the funetion-
alicy among GCDs in a GMA is how the (GCDs decide o share
fees authorized by HB 3059 with their neighboring GCDs and

whether well owners believe that their GCDs are adequately
funding the mitigation of impacted wells.

During the third joine planning cycle that was completed in
January 2022, subtle but significant changes oceurred in how
GMA 12 developed its GAM simulation for DFC evaluations
compared to previous joint planning cycles. One change was a
greater emphasis on representing permitred production in the
GAM simulation for evaluating and developing DFCs. Anoth-
er change was to not allow POSGCD rto determine how to
represent its permitted production in the GAM simulations.
During the first two joint planning cycles, GMA 12 allowed
#ll GCDs to unilarerally derermine how to sepresent their per-
mitred production in the GAM simulations. Alchough we can
only speeubate why these two changes occurred, the GMA 12
meetings provide ample evidence thar a morivation for these
two changes were concerns of a takings claim by the Vista
Ridge Project and ather water supply projects if their permit-

ted production were not adequately accounted for in the MAG

values derermined by TWDB. The use of GAM Run 8-19 ro
devetop DFCs for GMA 12 raises several questions abour the
joine planning process, which include:

* Is there a point where the DFC process can become
over-reliant on GAM simulations given the inherent
limitations and deficiencies of GAMs?

* Under what circumseances, if any, should individual
production permits be treaied differendy in generating
furure pumping scenarios used in GAM simulations to

develop DFCs?
¢ Was GMA 12% vewo of POSGCDs  request w
undesrepresent  the  Vista  Ridge  Carrizo Aquifer

production in the GAM simulations appropriate given
the requirements in TWC § 36.108 (d) and TWC §
36,108 (-2

Communicating the Use of Best Available Science

During the 2022 Senate and House interim hearings, there
were several inferences that bad science may have contributed
to some well owners being caught off guard by the large draw-
downs assaciated with Vista Ridge production. This section
discusses the science relevanrt ro DECs, MAGs, impacts caused
by Vista Ridge production in GMA 12, uncertainty associared
with the GAM predictions, and the importance of good com-
munication of the science to policy makers and the public.

Potential Benefits from Presenting the Spatial and

Temnporal Distributions of Simulated Drawdoiwns and
Water Levels Associated with GAM Simulations Used
to Develop DFCs

In GMA 12, as in some other GMAs, creating DFCs has
evolved into a process where the pumping rates used in GAM
simulation for DFC evaluarions are based on existing and
anticipated operational permits. Because chey incorporate
numerous permits across a GMA, the output from these simu-
lations, if analyzed and visualized properly, could provide valu-
able information for areas with the greatest adverse impacts to
groundwater levels and surface water Hows. The Vista Ridge
Project is included in most of GMA 12 GAM simulations,
including Run 5-19. Run 5-19 therefore contains informa-
tion about the spatial and temporal distributions of simulated
drawdowns that is potentially useful for planning and antici-
pacing future impacts to existing wells.

Figures 6-9 have been generated to show how much greater
and quicker drawdowns can eccur in the localized area around
the Vista Ridge Project compared to the timing and magnitude
of a DFC at a regional scale. Figure 6 shows the contours of
drawdowns that are predicted to occur in 2011-2070 in the
Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers within about 35 miles of the



46

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Carrizo Aquifer ‘
1Vista Ridge Well Field:
Simulated Drawdown
(2011 - 2070} i

Figure 6. Contours of simulated drawdown from January 2011 to January 2

based on Greundwater Availability Medel Run $-19,

Vista Ridge well field. The contours indicare thar drawdowns
greater than 300 and 450 fi occur in the Carrizo and Sims-
boro aquifers, respectively. Figure 7 displays charts of the Sims-
boro Aquifer spatial distribution of drawdown as a function
of aquifer arca distributions for POSGCD and LPGCD. For
both POSGCD and LPGCD, charts show: (1) only 15% of
the Simsboroe Aquifer arca has predicted drawdowns within 50
ft of the DFCs; (2} more than 33% of the Simsboro Aquiter
area has drawdowns greater than 100 fi than the DFCs; and (3)
drawdowns greater than 300 ft occur in both POSGCD and
LPGCD. Figure 8 shows thar after 4 years of Vista Ridge pro-
duction, more than one-third (33%) of the Simsboro and Car-
rizo aquifers’ DFCs would be “achieved” in Lee and Burleson
counties. This means that 33% of the average drawdown thar
was planned to occur in 59 years would oceur in only 4 years,
2020-2023. Figure 9 shows that approximatcly 180 Carrizo
Agquifer wells and 30 Simsboro Aquifer wells would experience
maore than 100 ft of drawdown after 3 years of Vista Ridge
pumping,

If these types of igures were regularly discussed in GMA 12,
landowners in lee County would have known that the targe
drawdowns they experienced in 2021 and 2022 were predicted
by the GAM simulations. Besides providing information thae
could help attract well owners to the DFC process, illustrations
of spatial and temporal distributions of predicted drawdown
could provide information to better assisc general managers
and board members of GCDs to manage, plan, and regulare
the groundwater production and mirigate well impacts,

: \'r\i";] o

i

osrnial,

Simsboro Aquiler
77 visla Ridge Well Field

__ Simutated Drawdown
(2011 - 2070)

Washipglon
‘

,

| ,

' 2 . -
SOOI SUUDP . S it S JUR PP ,

070 for the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers

Recognition of Uncertainty in GAM Predictions of
Drawdowns and DFCs

Because of the large size of many GAMs {for instance, the
GAM for the central portion of the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer
covers more than 26,000 square miles), GAMs often have a
wide variation in the types, quality, and amount of data used
to develop and calibrate different modeled areas. As a resuly,
2 GAM's predictions of water level change will often contain
different degrees of uncertainty and crror for different arcas of
intrerest,

The GAM currently being ased by GMA 12 for the Car-
rizo-Wilcox Aquifer was developed in 2020 (Young et _al.,
2020). This GAM was developed in response to concerns by
GMA 12 about the suitability of using a GAM (Young er al,,
2018} that was developed in 2018 prior to any data regarding
the impacts that the large production from Vista Ridge would
have on groundwater resources. These concerns included: (1)
historical warer levels from enly one Simsboro Aguifer well in
Burleson County was used in calibrating the model; (2) the
maximum annual production from the Simsboro Aquiter in
Burleson County during the GAM calibration period was only
140 aflyr, which is wo low a production rate to validaee the
GAM’s capability to predict drawdown caused by production
of 35.000 affyr; and (3) the GAM calibration did not incor-
porate the simulation of the nine Simsboro Aquifer pumping
tests conducted by Vista Ridge. As a result of these concerns,

GMA 12 performed a recalibration of the 2018 GAM to create

Woliie 17, Munber




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale 47
Production from a Confined Aquifes: The Vista Ridge Project

8%
- a) POSGCD
7%
6% o
i~

5%

DFC

3%

2%

1%

Percentage of Simboro Coverage

0% @ : ; ;
g 100 200 300 400 500 600

Drawdown (ft)

6%
b) LPGCD
5%

4%

3%

DFC = 240

2%

1%

Percentage of Simboro Coverage

0% . : i ‘
0 100 200 300 440 500 600
Drawdown (ft)

Figure 7. Distributicns of the Simsboro Aquifer drawdowns simulated by Run $-19 that are used to
determine the desired future conditions far Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
{POSGCD) and Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation District (LPGCD). Note the bin size for the
*-axis is 10 feet {ft).




48 Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

600

500 %

& 400
|
2
L]
‘T
2 300
o
o
200 e e T T T
Lee Simsboro
100 - — Lee Carrizo
e BiiHRSON SiMsShoro
e mBU:’!ESQn Carrizo
o - e i Do R HEPE
2010 2020 2080 2040 2050 2060 2070

Figure 8. Evolution of the average drawdown calculated from Run 5-19 for the
Simsboro and Carrizo aquifers in Burleson and Lee counties.

i Carrizo Aquifeé o

I Vista Ridge Wefl Field

| Simulated Drawdown
(2019 -2022)

[i u Camizo

Simsbharo Aquifer ‘
{1 Vista Ridge Well Field:

Simulatedt Drawdown |
(2019 - 2022) :

% Simsbore

|
|
¢

¥

i
[
:
t
i
1
i

SIIEIH

T Brson
.

Vi

Figure 9. Contours of drawdowns simulated from Run $-19 from Decerriber 2019 to December 2022 superimposed on

the lccations of exempt wells in the Lost Pines and Post Oak groundwater conservation districts database for the Carrizo
and Simshoro aquifers.

WP . . 3
v NWaer Joaesal, Vol




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

49

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Table 2. Comparison of the average drawdown predicted in Lest Pines Groundwater Conservation District (LPGCD) and Post Oak
Savannah Groundwater Conservation District (POSGCD) from 2011 to 2070 based on Groundwater Availability Model (GAM) Run 5-19
and on a GAM simulation with the same annual pumping equally distributed across the groundwater conservation districts (GCDs)

by aquifer,
MAG? ( Average drawdown (feet) 2011-2070 based on pumping distribution
GCD Aquifer acre- istributi i
q feet per year) Based on Run $-19 Based on dlstributm_g pumping from Run
$-19 across the entire aquifer by county
Carrizo 12,980 134 49
LPGCD -
Simsboro 79,945 238 61
Carrizo 18,206 146 56
POSGCD -
Simsboro 79,422 236 87

the 2020 GAM. The 2020 GAM was developed using both
a regional-scale calibration using historical water levels from
1930 to 2010 across the entire model domain and a series of
local-scale calibrations using 36-hour pumping tests performed
at cach of the nine Simsboro Aquifer wells. A major change
effected by the recalibration was doubling the Simsboro Agui-
fer transmissivity vatues from about 7,000 square feet per day
(fr*/day) ro abour 15,000 fi*/day in the viciniry of the well field
for the Vista Ridge Project {Daniel B. Stephens & Associates
etal., 2020).

Realizing the importance of calibrating GAMs at both local
and regional scales for improvcd GCAM prcdicticms, POSGCD

has an oagoing program to improve the calibration for the
going prog F

central portion of the Carrizo-Aquifer GAM by using the cal-
ibration software called PEST++ (Whire er al.. 2020), which
hdps quzmtify uncertainty in p:’cdir:tions of drawdowns. Figu;‘f
10 shows the uncertainty in the prediction of the POSGCD
DFCs for the Simsboro Aquifer using GMA Run 5-12, which
preceded Run S-19 after the GAM recalibration had been
expanded to include stmulating the evolution of the drawdown
cone case by Vista Ridge production from 2020 ro 2021, The
drawdown results in Figure 10 were generated from the seatis-

rics of 100 runs and average 292 ft with standard deviation of
about 11 fr (Young et al., 2021). The prudent application of
PEST++ offers considerable promise in helping GCDs under-
stand predictive uncertainey and how o reduce ic. An example
of applying PEST++ to quantity predictive uncertainty is pro-
vided by Ellis er al. {2023}, who document ¢the development
and application of the Gulf Coast Land Subsidence and Ground-
water-Flow (GULE) groundwater model for GMA 14.

Uniderstanding the Limitations of Modeled Available
Groundwater as an Indicator for Assessing the

Achicvement of Desived Future Conditions

After the Vista Ridge Project began pumping in 2020, sev-
cral landowners in POSGCD became concerned that the per-
mitted production and the actual production volumes from
the Carrizo and Simsbora aquifers in POSGCD were grear-
er than the respective MAG for cach aquifer. These concerns
were expressed during GMA 12 mectings and were part of an
inquiry stbmitted to the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ).

Table 2 shows the importance of pumping location w
achieving a DFC. This demonstration involves performing
a variation of Run S-19 b)f l'eﬂflocaring the annual pumping
so that the total annual pumping in cach GCD) is distributed
evenly across the entire GCD by aquifer. The realiocation was
achieved by determining the annual amount of pumping per
square mile per aquifer for cach GCD then applying the ratw
for cach respective GCD to cach aquifer grid, This reallocation
will cause the MAG to be spread uniformly across each aquifer
in cach GCD. The model results in Table 2 show that chang-
ing the location of the pumping while maintaining the MAG
can reduce the value of a calculated DFC by about 60% for
both the Carrizo and Simsbero aquifcrs. The results in Table
2, along with the understandings that GAMs are not perfece
predictors of an aquifer drawdown and char the furure hydro-

geological conditions are unknown, are substanial reasons why
a MAG may not be a reliable indicator of whether a DFC will
be achicved if the MAG is pumped on an annual basis,




50

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

FEmerging fssues

Because of HB 3059 becaming law and the potential impor-
rance of GAMs to GCDs” management decisions, an emerging
issuc will be the emphasis placed on developing GAMs for the
purpose of improving their capabilities to support predictions
of localized impact from pumping; evaluation of permit appli-
cations for production; development of mirigation strategies;
evaluation of DFCs; and implementing curtailment of per-
mitted production. A relatively recent advancement with con-
structing models that will gready enhance the utility of GMA
is using a groundwater code called MODFLOW 6 (Langevin
et al., 2021). MODFLOW 6 allows submodels, which cover
small arcas of interest, to be built into a much larger region-
al model. GAMs built using MODFELOW 6 will allow GCID

consultants to straightforwardly refine and vecalibrare GAMs

in one or more well fields of interest.

An emerging issuc with groundwater management s
improved coordination among GCDs in a GMA to coordinate
and integrate their design monitoring of well networks, mea-
surement of warer levels, and evaluation of compliance with
DFCs. Ideally, the GCDs in the same GMA should have simi-
lar, it not identical, methods for collecting data and evaluaring
DFC compliance. The inconsistency in how GCDs in a GMA
collect and evaluate warer level data for DFC compliance can
only work against a GCD trying to demonstrate a DFC viola-
tion and the need for curtzilment of production.

As the discussion continues regarding the need to improve
the GAMs, it is necessary to acknowledge that, despite the
known limirations wich the currene set of GAMs, the GAMs
remain our best available science for developing DFCs and
MAGs. Even with those limitations, GAMs may be reasonably
good predictors of pumping impacts for some areas of Interest,
To better understand GAMs™ potencial limitations and how
these limitations may be GMA- and problem-dependent. the
issue of predictive uncertainty will likely become increasingly
imporrant. The importance of uncertainty is recognized by the
U.S. Code (USC), which is the codification of the statutory
laws of the United States. The USC Tide 33 § 1321 (a2} (27)
(c) definition of “hesr available science” includes the require-
ment that it “clearly documents and communicates risks and
uncertainties in the scientific basis for such projects” (USC.33
§ 1321, 2023, § 1321 (a) 27) (C)). The importance of com-

municating risks and uncereainties is an impartant and emerg-

ing issuc for GCDs o address soon as they adopr DFCs.
RECOMMENDATIONS

We, the authors, recopnize that we cach represent different
g

groundwater-related poines of view and skilt sets. Amang these

arc legal, hydrogeologic, and pelicy considerations, The puar-

pose of wriring this case stud._y was, in our view, ro review and

Pewae Yoy _fnim':: i

learn from what has taken place in GMA 12 relared to large-
scale water transfers, current joint planning and modecling lim-
itations, real world impacrs, and mitigation cfforts. As noted in
this paper, the 88th Legislature has recognized some of these
limitarions and impacts and has taken action to address some
of these concerns. We welcome the recent legisladve action
including the cnactmens of HB 3039, In the spirit of contin-
ued improvement, informed by a retrospective review of what
has taken place, and in this case, the lessons learned from the
Vista Ridge Project, we offer recommendations that we feel
could, in roral or in part, assist in consideration of additianal
large-scale water transfers in other similarly situated parts of
the state. We recognize that site- and case-specific cansider-
ations may differ. Thus, based on our review of the impacts of
the Vista Ridge Project on groundwater management in GMA
12, we recommend thar the following topics be considered for
tuture discussions:

1. Explore options for clarifying the langtiage in TWCS 36
regarding the bulance sequirements in TWC § 36.108
(d-2) and TWC § 36.0015 (b) o help guide GMAs and
GCDs with accamplishing the intent of the statute;

2. Expand TWDB’s role to authorize—anly upen petition
by an affected landowner within a GCD--for TWDB
to undertake a limited review of the explanatory report
beyond an administrative review, An expanded review
could include determining whether the GMA and the
explanatory report have, in fact, (1) undertaken substan-
tial review and applicability of the nine factors outlined
in TWC § 36.108; (2) meaningfully and appropriacely
evaluared the “balance test” in TWC § 36.108 (d-2);
and (3) adequately addressed the concerns and questions
submitted to a GMA during the public comment periad
on the proposed DFCs. This recommendation recogniz-
es the increased transparency requirements of GCDs in
the development, considerarion, and adaprion of a DFC
as enacted by the Legislature during the 88th legislative
sesston as HB 3278, The review would not avthorize
TWDB to determine the appropriatencss of the DFC,
but rather to recommend additional dara and analysis
that should be considered by the GCD in developing
a DFC wnder a process thar has been, upon TWDDR
review, found ro have nor meaningfully considered the
nine elements under the TWC;

3. Provide TWDB with appropriate funding ta support the
development and improvement of the data and capabili-
ty of GAMs to evaluate the environmental and localized
socioecanomic impacis of proposed DFCs; and

4. DProvide GMAs with funding to improve communica-
ton of the science, improve public participation, and
prepare explanatory reports that document a meaningful
consideration of the nine factors in TWC § 36.108 {d).

bror




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

51

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

REFERENCES

Adlantic Refining Co. v Railroad Copmiissian, 346 S W.2d 801
(Tex. 1961).

Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District. (2021).
Memo to Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation
District Board of Dircctors from Stephen Cast, Board
President, Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservarion Dis-

hreps://posged.org/wp-content/ uploads/2022/01/
Draft -Explanatory Report Appendices-A-to-Xe.pdf.

Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation Districe, {2023).

trict.

Rules of the Brazos Valley Groundwarter Conservation Dis-
wrict. hoeps:/fbrazosvalleyged orgffiles/2catid=293.

Ceyote Lake Runch LLC v Ciry of Lubbock, 498 W. V. 3d 53
(Tex. 2016).

Danicl B. Stephens & Associates, Ground Water Consul-
tants, LLC, & INTERA Incorporated. (2020). Presenta-
tion to GMA-12: 8.7 Resubrs for GAM 2018 and GAM
2020, hupsi/{posged.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/
GMAT2 Ocr 22 GAM2020 C()mparison.pdf‘.

Daniel B. Stephens 8 Associates, INTERA Incorporated, &
Ground Water Consulrants, LLC. (2022). Desired Future
Condition Explanatory Report for Groundwater Man-
agement Area 12, January 28, 2022, hupsi//posged.org/
wp-content/uploads/2022/01/GMA 12 Explanarory-Re-
port Final 1-28-2022 pdf.

Douglas, E. (2021, Auguse 2). San Antonio built a pipeline to
rural Central Texas to increasc its water supply. Now local

landowners say their wells are running dry. The Texas Tri-
bune.  hteps:/fwww.texastribune, org/2021/08/02/san-an-

INTERA Incorporated. (2020, December 4), Desired Future
Condirions Commireee updace [Presentation]. POSGCD
DFC Commitree Mecting,  hupsi//posged.arg/wp-con-
tent/uploads/2020/12/DFC_meeting-Pec 4 fnal.pdf.

INTERA Incorporated. (2021, January 15). Submission
of 5-10% for GMA 12 Consideration |Presentation].
GMA 12 Meeting.  hopsi/posged.org/wp-content/
uploads/2021/01/GMA_12._S-10_summary_final.pdf.

INTERA lucorporated. (2021b, February 12). GMA 12
Desired Future Condirions Presenred eo GMA 12 |Presen-
tation] GMA 12 Meeting. herps://posged.org/wp-content/
uploads/2021/01/GMAI12 meeting Feb 12 2021h.pdf.

INTERA Incorporated. (2021¢, June 7). Update for GMA
12 Desired Future Conditions {Presentation]. POS-
GCD Board Mecting, hups://posged.org/wp-content/
uploads/2021/06/Agenda-ITtem-6.¢-Board meceting
Junc 7 202 v3.pdf.

Kirkle, S. R., Martinsson, L. K., Schlessinger, 5. R., Oreiz, A.
R., Fowler, I L., Puig-Williams, V., Mazur, ]. B., & Voe-
eeler, T H. (2023). Commentary: 88th Texas State Legisla-
cure: Summaries of Water-Related Legislative Action. Texas
Warer Journal, 14(1), 105-135. haps://doi.org/10.21423/
ovivldil.7167.

Langevin, C. D., Hughes, J. D, Banta, E. R., Provost, A. M.,
Niswonger, R G., & Panday, 5. (2021). MODFLOW 6
Modular Hydrologic Model (Version 6.2.1). ULS. Geolog-
icad Survey. hetps:/{doi.org/10.5066/P9FL1]CC.

Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation Discrict. (2023), Rules
of the Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation District.

https:/fwww. lostpineswater.org/ 191/ District-Rules.

tonio-water-supply-rural-wells/,

Edhweards Agueifer Anth. V0 Day 369 S W. 3d 814 (Tex. 2012).

Ellis, J., Knight, . E., White, J. T., Sneed, M., Hughes, J. D,
Ramage, |. K., Braun, C. L., feeple, A., Foster, L. K.,
Rendon, S, H., & Brandy, J. T, (2023). Hydrogeology,
land-surface subsidence, and documentation of the Gulf
Coast Land Subsidence and Groundwater-Flow (GULEF)
model, southeast Texas, 1897-2018 (Professional Paper
1877). V.S, Geological Survey, hitps://doi.org/10.3133/
ppl877.

Groundwaeer Management Area 12, (2021). Groundwater
Management Area 12 Meeting Minurtes for January 15,

2021, hupsid/{posged.orghwp-content/uploads/2021/12/

GMA-12-Minutes-01.15.2021-Signcd.pdf.
Houstan ¢ T.C. Ry, Co. o Fast, 81 S.W. 279, 281 (Tex. 1904},

Texas House Committee on Nazural Resources. {2022, August

24). House Commirtee on Natural Resources Hearing
{Video). hepsi//dchouse.granicus.com/MedialPlayer.
php?view id=468&clip id=23448.

Mace, R, E., Petrossian, R, Bradley, R., & Mullican, W. E, 111,
(2006, May 18-19). A streetcar named desired fucure con-
ditions — the new groundwater availability far Texas. State
Bar of Texas, 7th Annual Changing Face of Warer Righes
in Texas, San Antonio, TX, United States. hreps://aquif-
eralliance.orglwp-concent/uploads/2014/01/Desired-Fu-
ture-Candirions-03-1 _mace, pdf.

Mace, R. E., Petrossian, R., Bradley, R., Mullican, W, E, 111, &
Christian, L. (2008, May 8-9). A strectcar named desired
future conditions (revised). Stare Bar of Texas, Changing
Face of Water Rights in Texas, Bastrop, TX, United States.
hreps:/fwww, twdb. texas. gov/groundwater/docs/ Streetear,

Pecos Connty Water Contral ¢ Improvement Districe No. 1 1.
Williams, 271 5. W.2d 503, 905 (Tex. App. 1954)

Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District.
(20272, June 7). Post Oak Savannah Groundwarer Con-
servation Districts Board of Directors Meeting Minures.
hrpsi/fposged. orglwp-content/uploads/2021/07 /fune-7-
2021-Board-Mecting-Minutes, pdfl

brrne B, lube




52

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Post Oak Savannali Groundwater Conservation Districe.
(2021b). Post Oak Savannah Groundwarer Conservation
District position paper an GMA 12 propased DFCs for
the 3rd joint planning cycle. hrps://posged.org/wp-con-
tent/uploads/2021/07/Positon-Paper-on-GMA-12-Pro-
posed-DFCs 13.pdf.

Past Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservacion  District,
(2021¢, June 24). POSGCD discussion regarding pro-
posed desired future conditions. |Presentation} GMA 12
DEC Planning Mecring. https:i//posged.orgl/wp-content/
uploads/2021/06/2021 12 June 24 GMAT2 v9-2.pdt.

Post Qale Savannah Groundwater Conservarion District,
(2023a). Rules of the Post Gak Savannah Groundwarer
Conservation  Pistricr.  hupsi//posged.org/wp-content/
uploads/2023/09/Approved-Rules-4-11-2023. pdf.

Post Oak Savannah Conservation  District.

(2023h). GMA 12 Agenda & Minutes. hicrps://posged.

Groundwater

orglagendas-minutes/gma-12-agendas-minutes/.
Rubinsecin, C., & Puig-Williams, V. (2023). Improving water
g F g
planning in Texas: the critical but overlooked link benween

desired furure conditions and the state water plan. Envi-
ronmental  Defense  Fund.  hupsd//www.edforg/sites!
default/files/documents/Improvi ne%20Water% 20 an-
ning?20in%20Texas 0.pdf.
Terrill & Waldrop. (2020, November 10). Memo to Gary
Westhrool, GM, POSGCD from Paul M. Terrill 1L
Thompson, ]. C., Kreider, C. W, & Young, M. H. (2020).

Exploring groundwarer recoverability in Texas: max-

imum cconomically recoverable storage. Texas Water
Journal, 11(1), 152-171. htrps://t{mi.m‘g/10‘2]423/twj.
vl1til.7113.

Texas Water Development Board. (2022). 2022 Stave Water

Plan. heepsy/ hwww.owdb. texas. gov/waterplanning/

United States Cede 33 § 1321, (2023). heeps://codes.find-
law.com/us/gitle-33-navigation-and-navigable-wa-
ters/33-usc-seet-1321/.

Whire, J. T., Hunt, R. ], Fienen, M. N., & Doherty, J. E.

(2020). Approaches o highly parameterized inversion:

PEST++ version 5, a software suite for parameter estima-
tion, uncertainty analysis, management optimization and
sensitivity analysis {Techniques and Methods 7-C26). U.S.
Geological Survey. herpsi//doi.org/10.3133/tm7C26.

Wise, S. (2021}, Letrer o Board of Directors Brazos Valley
Groundwater Conservation Districe. https://posped.org/
wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Comments Wise-to-BV G-
CD _DFCs-GMAL2 2021 01 19.pdf.

Young, ., Jigmond, M., Jones, T., & Ewing, T. (2018).
Groundwater availability model for central pordion of the
Sparta, Queen City, and Carrizo-Wileox aguifers. Texas
Water Development Board. heps://www.nwdb.texas.gov/
groundwater/modelsfgam/{czwx_c/Updated CWQCSD
GAM voll all.pdfrd=15131,300000071526.

Young, S., Kushnereit, R., Donnelly, A., & Scifert, ] (2020).
GGMA 12 vpdace to the groundwater availability modet for

the central portion of the Sparta. Queen Ciry, and Car-
rizo-Wilcox aquifers: update to improve representation of
the transmissive propertics of the Simsboro Aquifer in the
vicinity of the Vista Ridge well ficld. Texas Warter Devel-
opment Board. hetps:/fwww.owdb.texas. gov/groundwater/
models/gam/czwx_¢/PE Repore GMAID final octo-
ber 2020 merge.pdf?d=15131.300000071526.

Yaung, S., Kushnereit, R., White, J., & Beal, L. (2021). The
furure is here: comparing projected and actual impacts of
Vista Ridge Project [Presentation]. Milam and Burleson
Countics Groundwater Summic, 2021, Auguse 12, 2021,
brtps://vimeo.com/showease/7469202.

swp/2022/index.asp.
Texas Water Cade § 36, (2023). hueps://satutes.capitol.texas.
sov/Docs! WA htm/ WA, 36.hem.

I
g




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

53

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

ATTACHMENT A: GROUNDWATER OWNERSHIP IN TEXAS

Although the rule of caprure has been the Jaw in Texas since
1904 and has been consistently described as a property right
incident to ownership, the courts were never required to define
rhe exact nature of the right until regulation of these rights
became authorized through groundwater conservation dis-
ericts. Beginning with Houston ¢ T.C. Ry Co. v Fasr (1904).
the courts described the rule of capture as a vight but never
clely defined when or if the right is a vested real property
right protected by the constitutional prohibition against a gov-
ernmental taking without compensation. In Hozstar o 10
Ry Co. v East (1904), the Texas Supreme Court, citing New
York law, stated: “So the owner of land is the absolure owner
of the soil and of percolating water, which is a part of, and nat
different from, the soil” (Heuston & 1.C. Ry, Co. n Fast (1904),
p.4). Similarly, in Pecos County, the El Paso Coure of Appeals

stated;
“It scems clear to us that percolating or diffused and
percolating waters belong o the landowner, and may
be used by him at his will . . . . These cases seem 1o
hold that the landowner owns the percolating water
under his land and that he can make 2 non-wasteful
use thereof, and such is based on a concept of prop-
erty ownership” (Pecos Connty Warer Control & Iin-
provement District No. 1 v Williams, 1954, p. 1),

’ThC naErure OF the g[’Olllld\Vﬂ&’l’ l'igh[ nnd \VhL“EhCI‘ ir was vost-

ed remained hotly debated yet unresolved until the Supreme
Couret’s decision in Edwards Aguifer Autherity v Day (2012).
On February 24, 2012, the Supreme Court issued a 50-page,
unanimous opinion confronting and answering for the firse
time the question of whether a landowner’s groundwater rights
are a vested real property right protected by the Texas and ULS,
Constitutions’ prohibitions against uncompensated taking,
The opinion begins with a suceinet summary of the issue pre-
sented in the decision:

“We decide in this case whether landownership in-

cludes an incerest in groundwarer in place thar

cannot be taken for public use without adequate

compensation guaranteed by Article 1, & 17(a)

of the Texas Constitution. We hold thar it does™

(Edwards Aquifer Auibority v Day, 2012, p. 2).

The court nated that while it had never addressed the issuc

regarding groundwater, it had done so long ago with respect to
oil and gas, ro which the rule of caprure also applies. The court,
quoting its previous decisions, noted that the right to the oil
and gas beneath a landowner’s property is an exclusive and pri-
vate property right inherent in landownership, which may not
be deprived without a taking of private property.

The Supreme Court found that there was no basis in the
differences cited berween groundwater and oil and gas to con-

1 §a“‘i‘s¥¥!3:‘=§,

Ay

clude that the cammon luw recognized a vested ownership of
oil and gas in place but not groundwater. Specifically, che court
explained:
“In our state the landewner is regarded as having abso-
lure title and severalty to the oil and gas in place beneath
his land. The enly qualification of that rule of owner-
ship is that it must be considered in connection with
the law of caprure and is subjeet to police regulations.
The ail and gas beneath the soil are considered a part of
the realty. Each owner of land owns separately, distinet-
ly and exclusively all the oil and gas under his land and
is accorded the usual remedics against trespassers who
appropriate the minerals or destroy their market value.

We now hold that this correctly states the com-

mon law regarding the ownership of groundwa-

ter in place” (Edwards Aqueifer. v Dayp, 2012, p. 2).
The court cited the legishative revisions to TWC § 36.002
demonstrating the Legislarure’s understanding of the interplay

between groundwater ownership and groundwater regulagion,

The opinion in Edwards Aquifer Aurhority v Day resolved
decades of conflict concerning the nature of the ownership
tight held by landowners in groundwazer in Texas. By applying
the case law applicable to oil and gas, the Supreme Coure has
derermined thar groundwarer is “owned in place” in Edidrds
Aquifer v Day (2012, p. 9) by the landowner and thae this
ownership right can support a claim for uncompensated raking
under the state and federal constiturions.

The Supreme Coutt further signaled that it would rely on
its over 100 years of decisions applying the absolute ownership
rule to oil and gas disputes in resolving groundwater issues in
its decision in Coyote Lake Rancl LLC v City of Lubbock (2016).
The City of Lubbock had purchased and held the groundwater
rights under the Coyote Lake Ranch for years. New owners of
the property objected to plans announced by the city o drill
60+ wells on the ranch to produce and transport groundwater
to the citgy. On review of a judgment favarable to the fandown-
ery the Supreme Court determined that the severed ground-
water right was, like a severed mineral interese, the dominant
estate, with the right to use the surface to access the groundwa-
ter. However, the court ruled that, like in oil and gas law, the
Accommodation Doctrine applied to the exercise of this right.
In SLITITIIALY, this means the groundwatcr estate, in exercising
it rights, must act with duc regard for the surface owner’s usc,

This decision indicates that the courts will likely consider
its decisions in disputcs involving minerals on issues arising
in groundwater disputes involving permitting. The ownership
rights must be considered and addressed by groundwarter dis-
trices in striking the appropriate balance berween conserving
and protecting the groundwarer resources within their jurisdic-
i

TN :
Vol 19, Bhanhes




54

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifeir: The Vista Ridge Project

tion while recognizing the veseed property L'ights of the land-
owners subject to regulation.

The courts’ decisions make clear two fundamental principles:
(1) that groundwater rights are a vested property right protect-
ed from governmental action that constitutes a taking of that
right without just compensation; and (2} that the courts will
consider case law in disputes involving oil and gas in deciding
conflicts regarding groundwater.

Groundwater districts need to be mindful of the judicial
precedents established in evaluating oil and gas regulatary pro-
grams and impacts on landowners’ vested rights in the minerals
below ground. One important and likely relevant conceps is
that regulation cannot unreasonably deprive the landowner of
their fair share of the managed resource (Atlantic Refining Co. v

Railroad Commission, 1961}, While the goals and consequenc-

es of groundwater management are distinetly different than
in mineral dcveiopment, the courts will consider oil and gas
precedents in deciding whether regulatory decisions made by
sroundwater districts limit the landowners” groundwater own-
crship rights to the extent that a constitutionally prohibired
taling has occurred.

This rension is parricularly acute when districts protect
existing use by Himid ng or preventing future use. The Rule of
Caprure, as a kgal principle, provides no protection for histor-

Ve NWarer

oarnal,

ic use. Landowners who have conserved the resource by not
producing from it can have their rights [imited w protecr the
resource and historic use, but the coures will consider oil and
gas decisions in determining if limiting chose rights tiscs to the
level of a king. At the same time, they must consider how the
goals of groundwarer regulation differ from the goals of repu-
lation of oil and gas. As the Supreme Coure noved in Edwards
Aquifer Auth, v Day (2012):

“The pl'incip:ﬂ concerns in rc‘.gularing oil and gas pro-

duction are to prevent waste and to provide a land-

owner a fair oppartunity to exwract and market the oil

and gas beneath the surface of the property. Ground-

water is different in both its source and uses. Unlike

oil and gas, groundwater in an aquifer is often being

replenished from the surface, and while it may be sold

as a commodity, its uses vary widely, from irvigation,

o Endustry, to drinking, to recrearion. Groundwater

regulation must take into account not only hiscorical

usage but future needs, including the refative impor-

gance of various uscs, as well as concerns unrelated

to use, such as covirenmental impacts and subsid-

ence” (Edwards Aguifer Auth. p Day, 2012, p. 18).

How this balance will be stcruck will be rhe subject of furure

court decisions.

Webime 19, Bomder




Laura Martin

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Folfow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Texas Alliance of Groundwater Districts <TAGD@wildapricot.org>
Friday, August 16, 2024 12:36 PM

Laura Martin

Haley Stakes

Monday Field Trip: Important Information

Follow up
Completed

Dear Laura,

We're excited that you've registered for the pre-conference educational field trip to
the San Antonio Water System (SAWS) H20aks Center, taking place from 12:30-
4:30 pm on Monday, August 19, the day before the Texas Groundwater Summit
begins. This is a unigue opportunity o explore one of the most innovative water
facilities in Texas. Click here to learn more about the facility.

Note: We do still have a few spots available! Any interested colleagues can register

here.

Field Trip Team:

Blaire Parker is the SAWS representative for the field trip and will be on the
hus available for any SAWS-specific questions. Thanks to Blaire and other
SAWS staff for coordinating this oppertunity and providing transportation
and snacks!

Kelley Cochran, TAGD Parliamentarian and General Manager of
Guadatupe County GCD, will serve as the TAGD liaison and field trip
“captain." Make sure to check in with her when you arrive.

Logistics & Details:

Meeting Spot: Please meet at the Windmill Motor Cowrt Foyer at 12:30.
Our field trip team will be there to greet you and get everyone on the bus.
See a map of the hotel with the meeting space circled here.
Transportation: We will be providing transportation from the Hyatt
Regency Hill Country Resort to the H20aks Center and back.
Refreshments: While lunch will not be provided, shacks and drinks will be
available upon our arrival at the H20aks Center,

Registration: If anyone else from your crganization would like to join and
hasn't registered yet, we still have a few spots left. Please encourage them
to sign up by clicking the yellow "Register"” button here.

Helpful Tips:



+ Please bring a refillable water bottle if you would like to enjoy water during
your visit, '

= Wear comfortable, closed-toe walking shoes, and dress appropriately for
the weather. While most of our time will be spent indoors, there will be some
walking around the facility.

+ Restroom facilities wilt only be available on the bus and af the H20aks
Center, so please plan accordingly.

We look forward fo seeing you on Monday for what promises to be a fun and
educational experience! If you have any questions before the trip, feel free to reach
out. However, TAGD staff availability will be limited on Monday, so for any last-
minute questions or updates on that day, please email blaire.parker@saws.org,
kelley@gcged.org, AND summit@texasgroundwater.org so your issue can be
handled accordingly.

Thank you,
The TAGD Team



MREPX AR A LiEas ARNEC EeR OGS R0 USNSDEWEASTEEERESD 51 S8 “Te R SC S5

= 2024
W= TEXAS GROUNDWATER SUMMIT

= Hyatt Regency Hill Country * San Antonio, TX * August 20-22

[~

AGENDA

*Monday, August 19 — Optional field trip add-on to San Antonio Water System H20aks Center*

Day 1 — Tuesday, August 20

8:30am Registration Table Opens
9:30am - 11:00am TAGD Annual Membership Meeting

1:00pm - 3:00pm  Welcome Address
Adam Foster, Executive Director, Texas Alliance of Groundwater Districts

Groundwater Rights in Texas
Charles Porter, Real Estate & Water Rights Consultant

Panel - Playing by the Rules: GCD Violations & Enforcement
Moderator; Drew Satterwhite, General Manager, Canadian River Municipal
Water Authority
John Martin, General Manager, Southeast Texas GCD
Dave Mauk, General Manager, Bandera County River Authority & Groundwater District
Stacey Reese, Attorney, Stacey Reese Law
Patrick Wagner, General Manager, Middle Trinity GCD

Hydrogen Energy Value Chain and Impacts on Water
Ning Lin, Center for Energy Economics Chief Economist, Bureau of Economic Geology

3:00pm - 3:30pm  Afternoon Break (Sponsored by Edwards Aquifer Authority, Halff Associates, and McElroy
Sullivan Miller & Weber LLP)

3:30pm - 5:15pm  Keynote Address — Communication: The Last Frontier in Science
Dr. “Hurricane Hal" Needham, Extreme Weather and Disaster Scientist, GeoTrek

Panel - All the Small Things: Studying & Managing Minor Aquifers

Moderator: Amy Bush, Hydrologist, RMBJ Geo

Natalie Ballew, Groundwater Division Director, Texas Water Development Board
Blaine Hicks, Staff Geologist, Upper Trinity GCD

Bill Hutchison, Independent Groundwater Consultant

Kevin Urbanczyk, Director of Rio Grande Research Center, Sul Ross State University

5:15pm - 6:15pm  Welcome Reception (Sponsored by Brazoria County GCD)



B XA S AL ISPASN-GE S QR G ROU N D WIATTEAR: DS se THRECHE S

|

=

2024

&
¥ TEXAS GROUNDWATER SUMMIT

Hyatt Regency Hill Country « San Antonio, TX * August 20-22

Day 2 — Wednesday, August 21 (continued)

1:30pm = 3:00pm

1:30pm - 3:00pm

3:00pm - 3:30pm

3:30pm - 5:00pm

3:30pm - 5:00pm

Breakout Track B — Waste Not, Want Not: Advancements in Produced Water Reuse
Critical Minerals in Produced Water
Brent Elliott, Associate Research Professor, Bureau of Economic Geology
Land Application of Produced Water
Adrianne Lopez, Technical Research & Development Manager, Texas Pacific
Water Resources
New Rules for Oil & Gas Waste Pits and Recycling Facilities
Virginia Palacios, Executive Director, Commission Shift

Breakout Track C — Navigating the Intersections of Local Regulation
Primer on the PUC and Water Providers

Adam Friedman, Partner, McElroy Sullivan Miller & Weber LLP
Annexation and CCN Issues

Emily Rogers, Managing Partner, Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP
Opportunities in Subdivision Regulation

Marisa Bruno, Water Program Manager, Hill Country Alliance

Afternoon Break (Sponsored by Edwards Aquifer Authority, Halff Associates, and McElroy
Sullivan Miller & Weber LLP)

Breakout Track A (repeat) — Fundamentals of Groundwater Management

Basics of Bottom-Up Water Planning in Texas

Robert Bradley, Groundwater Technical Assistance Manager, Texas Water
Development Board

Demystifying GCD Permitting

Jake Steen, Attorney, Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend

Anatomy of a Well

Joel Pigg, Texas Well Owner Network Coordinator, Texas A&M AgriLife Extension

Breakout Track B — Local Science Developments

Hydrostratigraphic Model of the Trinity Aquifer for a Portion of Central Texas

Vince Clause, Texas Groundwater Lead, LRE Water

San Solomon Springs Studies

Rebecca Nunu, Principal Geoscientist, Edwards Aquifer Authority

Planning, Leadership, and Science: Developing the Bandera Well Longevity Model
James Golab, Innovative Water Technologies Manager, Texas Water Development Board

Breakout Track C — Leading Them to Water: Effective Public Outreach

Applying Adult Learning Strategies for Better Engagement

Amy Hays, Assistant Director of Development & Outreach, Oka Water Institute
Outreach by Meeting People Where They're At

Greg Wukasch, External Affairs Manager, San Antonio Water System

Making a Splash With Storytelling

Leah Cuddeback, Storytelling & Public Engagement Manager, Hill Country Alliance




TEE XaALSE AT AL ATNSC I ERR O S GRRAO SUANEDSWSARTEE SR D 3| 88 SR REICITES

— 2024 |
= TEXAS GROUNDWATER SUMMIT

-

o Hyatt Regency Hill Country * San Antonio, TX « August 20-22

Day 2 — Wednesday, August 21 (continued)
5:00pm - 6:00pm  Happy Hour Reception (Sponsored by INTERA)

8:00pm — 10:00pm Drinks & Desserts Networking Event (Sponsored by Real Edwards Conservation &
Reclamation District)

Day 3 — Thursday, August 22

7:45am - 8:15am  Breakfast Taco Bar (Sponsored by Olsson and Upper Trinity GCD)

8:15am — 10:00am Welcome
Adam Foster, Executive Director, Texas Alliance of Groundwater Districts

Panel - Emerging Management Issues for Large-Scale Production Permits

Moderator: John Dupnik, Deputy Executive Administrator, Texas Water
Development Board

Russell Johnson, Partner, McGinnis Lochridge LLP

Laura Martin, General Manager, Gonzales County UWCD

Carlos Rubinstein, Principal, RSAH20

Steve Young, Principal Geoscientist, INTERA

Panel - Groundwater Crossroads: Perspectives From Agriculture, Ranching,
and Wildlife

Moderator: Jim Bradbury, Partner, James D. Bradbury PLLC

Andrew Earl, Director of Conservation, Texas Wildlife Association

David Gibson, Executive Director, Texas Corn Producers

James Oliver, Board Member, Texas & Southwestern Cattle Raisers Association

10:00-10:30 am Morning Break (Sponsored by Edwards Aquifer Authority, Halff Associates, and McElroy
Sullivan Miller & Weber LLP)

10:30-12:15pm Current Legal Issues - Litigation and GCD Action Appeals
Greg Ellis, Attorney, GM Ellis Law Firm
Deborah Trejo, Partner, Kemp Smith Law

Head Above Water: How Professionals Can Avoid Burnout (1-Hour Ethics)
Paul Jacobs, Staff Attorney, Texas Lawyers’ Assistance Program



spuesnou} ut suojeb,

mm..wow.
5208k
oe L8l
86.L8¢
w.m.NNm.
oevie

S e

s994

Qo0

$ 000

Q00

000

000

000

000

- pepodsues) - abesn
_ “ [lPM UouIH:

000
000

000

000

T 000

000

000

000

000

© 88699

28'6/8'/

krear'e

89'06Z't

610969

FANGI WA

pepodsued)

006568

00885
00°098'

Oommwd

00°L2'L

S 00ee's

¥eo
abesn - Buipeay Ja19|
uonelodion Alddng J191eph YNDVY

000'L1¥'666

000257066

000'768'Z86
000'L610£6

.. 000'0¥2 56

191N

T e0e08's
000'72£'296

8C'esy

6GLpL

99'/6l°¢

T 8ERLr'S
1 000'700°LL6 _

GE'CSH'G

ZoLLY'D

papdodsuel}

09'S1LS

08'2/8

oo’y
ogolz'g
00'259°9

L goTles'e:

08192 1eok 1oy | 4/0Y [eloL
{uouw Jualing 10} sjgemo|je Ajauotu o sbejuaniad

S 00Le6 202

LA/ Ul UOONPOI4 YIUOR Jualing

410V €101

LSUO|[ES |EJOL

P = Yo 1T 1=Ye =Yg

005°255°98.

. 006'270'982
00L'791L'582
- 000°c08'08L

002985722

004'€8E 194

1aquisnoN
S 1sgore0

Jaquisydeg

- u_.w:ms,q
Anr

aunp

fep

uolepy

?m?ﬁmm

Aenuep

- ejeq



AQUA Monthly Production

02015 Producticn
#2016 Production
02017 Production
m2018 Production
132019 Production

82020 Production

H2021 Production
12022 Production
12023 Production
#2024 Production

T B e O I B N M W iy

o n S h M S A s

1
FFTFTFTTFFrrrFrry

L,
T T T T A T S P ST T P T Ty S

60

e g
o R G e O L T o e (L (O L ST
E P T e P Ty ..-\. -
“hn
P 7, 7 z A
[
R A T L T T A P T TR A LAY
e e e e L e e tay
A A A A o
(ZTEZILLL LA I LA LL AL ATTLITIIY 0/1
7 ’ ;
” 2
AR AR AR AR AN
e a e Famham P a P a s R a d a® R b o Pt N as Fa® At B a A ah P Byt By ol F,
o O G S T N S 4%
L
B S S e S S S S SN S N O e e ey
i iiviviriwimivimivivivivirdiriy
foi B B B g B e B B G g o Bod o B T b b
flllfl”’l”ll”l”l %f%
555
’OG’Q,
%,
A AR A R A A =
I 1 [ ; I
A Y
’G@
%
S
I T 11 T T T 1
t 3 + T T 1 t
[Is} o Lo o w < [s] o wy o Ly (=]
[Te] 123 ~ ~+ o 3 o 39 - -~

(1ee)-e438) NOILONAOYd

July 2024



spuesnoy) ug suoleh

[ Uohanpoid Aieak jo 9Bejlis3isd

Lea0t

)86

L

-OUW JUBLIND 10} B|0EMORE AJGILOW JO afejuaniog

Radec> 4 s T e HIE LG8 2iily.
876301 - gzeecE - oBZell LZVELL ogegal 09551
- 230
AON
30
jdeg
R 1=y 4 RN TR TINAR [ - AR . 96G'8T gkl L SR L63'0Z c|BELiLL
o 0getees |- 508'098%) S aLptogl ) |- ¥85'860°L| £91°49Z'L CURLBELE T 5z e 1662'84T'T .568'589'L | CLL'ObP'L by
98911 9%0'6% LYE'ET Srpoz €242 zeg'll 8zL'sl
8EV'6.5 Zeg'oLe'L 8TL'551°L YZTLTLOL ZEY'EFT'L | Zge'0es £02'828°L 6¥Z'952'Z 201'599'L za5'6zy'L Anp
86FGL T g o T (as0'eg SR IR0 2 : SRR T ¥4 Claggalt : (ZOLIg L g
ST gesaeg [l grgtaagL [ 18/ LEL'L SLE'050'L R 1 1 Al LE6'698 L 088'eeg L GALQeZ T [ QL AR L pevtpLe L
LibEL TLl'9E BLG'YE ev'te Zri'al 5%2'6L Zri'sl 129'61 Tl 65571
£6Z'26¢ 655'988' sli's0L'L ¥BE'LZ0'L L0161t a98'sr8 SPP'eEe’l £LE'GIT'T 801'629'} 0/5'868°L Kew
vegzL G |EBAAE L LI gedlog . . et leegtel PR TR LT
ZRALEG | 28a'aeL | 961'vB0'L 28t'900' ) gse'asL'L CuBL'ezg Lo Lze'L T peusel'E Cees'tLe'L SR LRt
LA opg'pe 9e1'02 £og'sl oze'el
g5L'5es S00'094' ) 8¥Z'€90'L 614686 Slo'gst'L GEL L8 00E's09'L 00v'Z2L'E 262'G65'L $9Z'04€°L
9PE' L L gek e e B o TR & R SRR -4 - | R SN ARSI oYy A=K . BEE'QL P T =10y A SR
¥E9'TLS SRR - 18- N ZZ6'EF0'L £8s'see | glg'asL og'zes | leviaggL] 080°651'2 ~ ZZR'6LG'E LL1'9gE°L
906'¢L £0L'48 £es'6l £8'1T ¥og'12 Zeg'sl vrL'aL LoL'pl
882'105 £86'¢69'L £98'0z0'L 0E8'2¥6 LPE'0ZL' ) 5EE'94L 183'v48'L 6ZTLZFL'E Prr'5es't PSEPPEL uer
~abesqny Js3ay. . ebesn) OB - . ebes[. .- J91al - abesn. Jajai obesn ' a9j9W .- obesn . A9)9W - .abesn ... Jelel abesn ag)aN . ebesn . BB
ysed uRnSLYD ISBT puUOg T 35O URASKUD, " 359 puog PIBURINIT " 71 BSNOH USNINED " 1oph S.Awwo L 1B 5N duley ™ - fjapg prard [e3seoD
Si# IBM SHENEM ST 4%: 31 TS S1# I L G IOM BHIBM UL TR G#IIBM T L B
2611 % 1 5 R 6817 88ET : S egtd lzod 8zod “oBgod
¥202

abesn - Buipesy 19191 19I2AA YIURY SHOM
fuoyiny iaiep |euciBay uofueyn



CRWA Monthly Production

M| 2015 Production
#2016 Production
02018 Production
02019 Production
m2021 Production
m 2022 Production
m 2023 Production
r,. 2024 Production

82017 Production
2020 Production

: .
NN ORI
L

1 AT " A i i i g
— (A T U T M M M M N L M I Y :{5}7
d))&
\ We e e w e e
IIIIIIIII'IIIIIIIIIIIIEII
%
“h
"\\\ \\\\\\ . e e R e e e e e s
hE 7 = AL A
L i3 23 F4d i 5 W @(/
R D

2% P AT A T T
\\\\\.\\\\\\\\\\\\.\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\‘i
(E A LN RN NN L

AR RN
B

P T LR LT LT LU DL LT LY
I 2000 CNMN AN,
N

I 0000
e e e e e x W]

EROUCOROUUCLUUURI R IR A : m

IR AN RN AN S NN SN ]
T

800

700

[= o o o [ j [
o o j=] o a3 <
o g < 84 ™~ —

(329)-2428) UOKRINPOLG

August 2024



spuesnoy) ul sucjeb

Gy Jeak 105 poad jo ¥, GZELL JKa0p Ypoe pjoy
$9°¢C Ol JUBLIND J0) SGEMO]|E AjLIUCW JC %,
PGS H/9e U] uopanpold "ol uduang
ogor Ll geye sZ'Le BERRE - A lgeL 6591 S -V AR HB/oe [E0],
50Z'SlL Zr0'e Z8L'0l $95'G L92'9 9or's v6.L'G By} ,suojies (go)
B+ -Te |
AON
100
jdeg
6 TAINSRIRSRE I N 2% g BIOE I Tl |/ AR - PEBLL I e Vi : aQ - : _
¥29'29L0L EeRZIE'G | opgigeR'e T | 192 0Re' T CROBVWIY'E L ZL9'R0s'y 90Z'29.'1 | By
128 £2¥'9 G08'c 996 orsL 291
z8L'LLe's F0.'898'2 LOP'G08'e 950'096 SPLCIY L Zerevs’l - eoz'LeLL | Amp
LPEE B FEE g [0/:101 SR L1208 _ 1812 ot :
: _ 00LP8LZ" TN 000'GLL 000'882' 1 000°6E1 Glg'ege'L jeunp
05 0S 89Z'% Sl 0s
00L'PELT oo0'sel | 000'89Z°L 000'sEL . GLe'68Z'L | Aew
098 S BRI (o) Sninm 0 S [ el .
S 00LpLE L oco'szs 0" 008'Zye 0 el gle'egss sdy
FOL 0 0 0 _
| 002028 0 | 008Tv9 0 0 518985 | ew
0 G = 0 S 0 L o : : 1485 LR
002045 e GLg'ogs qed
o
uep
cheid DDES 239 2 o 8yed
2B HPM U TEIBM LETPM
L ge0d £90d" g

¥202
abesn - Buipeay J1sjol
Ajoyiny oAy oauepg-adnjepns



GBRA Monthly Production

Production
Production
Production

e 2022
®2022
%2024

70.00

A ..y

R T TTIITIRNM
I .

|

\

(ye03-2108) NOILONACHJ

August 2024



spuesnoy u; suoged

le'ezb'ass  semjegeel” £leg’ 7 reah a0y poud 10 % Hriges 7 Ieaklojyoe [R301
(=34 FUOW JURAIN D JQ) IFQRMO]ER .a_r_u:OE 0 0%
08155 U8 Ul UOHBRPOI] YIUOY Jualing
wrieets 8 IGLE £2E0L £¥'Lo8 ZE06EL 78628 PG " eE'BED- =y 11 U IGEELL T e ejaL
Sv6'88C'Z L§L'CIE £¥E'8Z2 869°087 SE0'ESH 891'90} 0iL'iS ZoL'er z21'08g 9Z0'0LE £SUCI[ED {230
a8q
AON
190
) dag
orzares lzevi loverse s fpeggr i agpyy e Clggegtt L g o s T I e ST, B
: T passsge | cagizeey - | PeELLLE U ZRE0LR T Z0R MY £89'6¥5 G985 L'y B 55X 1v) 3 - RS LF'Lizee | Bny
GL'.GE'BS 16799 |GIG'LS (virralnd 81208 0£8'LS £28'62 4% osv'Ls £68'22
WY'SLE'E 6ZZ'018' L06'622'E - B80SV ZOELPEY CLBEYS 9OV LEV'Y wivisee LiF'Lige | Aior
yL'86V'85 . [166' [EE9'SE S | TG EERRREEAE V5 o318 N P4 R 141 RS R U || S B R [0 - S | ELL09 : -
) : ’ : gog'igL'e’ | B8I6'29LY - | PELBBL'S - | 0 BAR'9SE T | T QLYSLY'S L89'6PS - gLogssYy |0 peR'ERT'E ¥gg'gez'e - | sunp
99'50Z'3% |050'L [Sh¥'ST SBDE B55'8Y frach o) 0 LRLES LPE'98
B ) _ £ETTELE GZREELY LE9'Z8L'E LSLLOS LIy 199'8rS 669'L5€'Y $65'6E2'C ise'geee | Aew
APLPPEST LE0'ST (bZEES LT dger'E e LTy 894 ‘ g ao e RERIREE |- 7154 ] SR 0288 e :
: : T g8L'eeg'e FHO'COLY : RIGVEL'S T ozegky T | 955'5EZY L99'6YS sag'gze'y |- L IoLesl'e : ¥0G°LLL'E Jdy
¥E'G9L'88  [LLLG JDLL'YS ey 15261 &¥z 0 ¥ Z6E'LE 591'ze
vog'ees's | 0o0e0ry IZETIVE . vogese | L88°G5TY Jegers | PYSOTEY .. semeaLe rig9oL'e | e
PEL0E'LS 0 [8L0'G [OFZTPG zuzel” S gyt eeeeg B o R T PAY L |GBEILG 688G :
U oyssess'e | 8TL'8g9'Y " | pea'zen'e B 865'0E€ i TUosgleey Le9'ers - | obg'gze'y [ 9g0'zel'e” o ole'pyo'e | ged
E0'I0L'LS  [LYESE [L06'Gh £ Yoe'be ZEY'BS = 0 GLLES oEr'or
£L5'sz5'e SLE'SKO'Y 050'570'S 9LL'9LZ 8E1'SET'Y S5¥'825 £ZV'SIE'Y 151'080'¢ 112'286'Z uer
s394 CMNWE ELEEG] FEETT —obesn ... . dBIP sbesn - Jajel’ - BELCETR ~daaN T ebesn AN abesn A:3 “ebesn Ayl . oBesM - IB1OW. .. - obesn. . Iela|W . eyeq
L S DM B FL-DM 18 OL-DAMlIEM L 59M 12 DM I3M LDMIEM o DM e DU S OMIBM T ZeDMIBM
avod T ST ped L r0d E¥0d Zrod Lhwod L ovd :eg0d o sg0d
¥eoz

abesn - Buipeay Jo)aN
WaISAS ISIBM OlUOGUY UBS



SAWS Monthly Production

[ 2017 Production
2 2018 Preduction
22019 Production
B 2020 Production

2021 Production
2022 Production
32023 Proguction
732024 Production

LA A AN A A AR AR T LR R AN

120090

o
<
o
a9

800.00 -~

3
{1934-200) ucanpoid

August 2024




spuesnouy Ul suajeb

SUELLELS T SMR|0Q jRI0L £8uy 4824 104 "pod J0.% 2E0928 7 JAJop o [RY0L
BL'.B "OLU JUSLIND FO§ B|qRMO][E AJUILGHE JO %,
B89 /851 HIE Ul LOHORPOold "o JUsLng
LE0928 0Lzg8 z60/8 9e'5Z8 SU'RLEL gL L pEEee 1318017 ocpee - 66'PEE 89ChLE [E-Yie PPEPD Y/oe |Bj0L
Z06'210'S 005'2Le 889771 SEE'89E SE0'BYY SOL'E9E geg'cze 955'Zre 866'901 20L'82L $58'288 28022 OPE'B0T LSUDJIES) |Bj0L
- 939
1dag
08 LZFTLS |BkL 'Sk e el ee'sg 03 Rl v EE TR | T 1 Y - S T S GO I e e TR SO
: : : eep'esL Y - BBL'YOT'S R T GLEe0Re | TERLEE | - E¥B'6FY CLig'ope Log'zee | gLe'sep | gzL'egE 986'80E. S Q0F'E80'y | By
28'ZEE'ES - {5292 [0 398 LE 9z0'Le 969'5e 86908 ] SLETLY 0oL'es
e 859°8¢E £E2'6HEZ ZPLGEEE 0LH'BL8 £91'865 §15'882 LTT'BLE L6855y 9/2'80L ¥£5'282 9/€920'L
80Zeg'ss - {8808’ [g" TR i U epser CEITQLOe T | esethg B AN AR TENPRERTERE 117 kA Tereliy R | R e ST
S e e e S9E'581'S TR eE LI [ e IRV | rLEEYE LY LYS CErZ'oes CLOMLLE T reeeep | e0te CYES' 18T BITELE
STEVE'SS - |2208 (181G Lv'Ey ¥9L'va S06'bY LLe'sy wPL'E 9.8'sy 0 9£E'vZ
Sl LLLELY L8E851'E 6LPLGR'T POLGOL'E $ZL'Z6L £PE'96Y Zr6'e80 Z6a'viE 198°95t Sir'el ¥E5°282 Aepy
A ] R TR aag e e feewee o eovag i B O e PO e
S S pos'eRs 'y THTBrL'e CAPB'SLEE F T opstop0'e | L TR : 228261 7 120’089 zis'ove | LEVEEY | LEYLSE ves'282 " ady
L1648 [Pl [pig'ar §5F'42 8227y 28e'e 86 LY ZoL'0r ser'ey 0
08L'E99 Y B.GEYLE 9902687 Z41'266'C 8.€'80L 89T . 890'288 EpL'SBT £95°5L¥ &%0'926 ¥£5'292
B 24 - R V11 1T B 0 SRS egQR LTI gzetel T (oggte T e T e T (.10 e BLE'SE o ”
R ST g Bl | arliigl'e [ LogeeET | PEE'LPE'T | LpD'098 CLALYSE T LagoLs | LSBT LBYELE Cloyle'zes FEG'LET qaz
oyoeg'es  |228s  [sELvs 0 g0L'ey SLB'ER FEO'EY £P0'L L16'8E BOE'? 967'CE LLs'ey 0
LLL'ISEY SYLLSLE FOE'BPEE 955'888'C LBELLG QST LEE 080'LPS 249282 204598 FrL9ER ¥E5'282 085068 uep
sS993 T NVE L oBes(]: . IRy - - 9bes(]. . - Jokay] abesn FEIET - abesn. . A8}l DESN .- JOYBIN ... eDesM. . JoJeIN . oDeS\. - JAISIN . eDRSN . J10W. . oDesM). - JEYW . - 8BesM . . JAyoy . eDES[) .. JOJOI
S AN D L B L OL# HEM L SR IRM | sHieM - CPRIRM BRI TR MR L M
ST pe0d EERERERNE < /7 E . 2e0d S 2kod 930d F1.: oL0d 600d : SREES
jrAIrA

abes - Duipeay ta1ap

uojeIodios) JUBWHIAAOL) B30 uinBag-zpayog



SSLGC Monthly Production

£ £ £ € £ £ £ £
S8 e 0 0 g 9 0 0
B T BT BT T © © O
3 3 3 F 2 23 3 3
T T T 9 9 9 G D
g P PP g Yo p
[ S U T e N i i
~ o 8 QO v N M %
- T T NN N NN
o o QO 9 o 0O O O
N N NN NN NN
Bl w OB OB A 0O
i 1 i T i il T T T T Tk T B Tk P
T T T T T
o= o -] o o (=] (] (o) o (]
Q Q ] (=] (=} < (o] [ (= Q
O [ o (=) QD (= 3 3 (=
o o <t o~ f=} o« o <t o8
~— — ~— Ll R

{1094-0108) NOILONAON

August 2024



npa‘jun-iojuowlybnoip

i

—

vas

PRRLEVN

SO0

VYVON/IFON

WioH pieyory

TogIny

xdsenogyy/npa-jun-ioyuowiybnoipy:sdny o1 o6 Yoyuopy wybnoiqg
8y} U0 UO[RWLIOMUI J0W 104 Aiea Aew SUQRIPUOd [BI0T
"SUOIIPUOD 3[e0S-PeIq U0 SOSN0) JOYUOHN J4BNoIq ay 1
1yBnouq jeuondsaxg vq I uBnoiq a1 I9po La _H_
Wybnoiq swalxg €Q I A1q Ajjewiouqy 0Q _H_

wbnoig sssnes zal ] suoN [ ]

ysusu]
. ) . ) ) ) £202-62-80
79'ZL | €2 [ 1719 | €8'6L [ 5786 | S§°L | 0By sesp aug
£202-92-60
89zl | 908 | 99'65 | ¥9°08 | L6796 | £0'c | 1eaA J3rEM
jo Els
¥202-¢0-L0
890 | 895 | 8LLL | L6 | 0409 | 09'6€ | 489A JepuajeD
Jo peyg
. . ) . . . $202-82-50
000 | 06k | €0°EL | 87°9Z | OL'6¥ | 7805 | 6By sypuopy &
] . ) . . . #202-02-80
8L | 819 | LLbh | LOOY [ 1229 | 6LL8 | yoom 1seq
z8'L | 092 | szzz | ey | 86708 | 206l jusung
MR LRl #0-2a | ¥a-1d | 7300 | SUON

«mml:.\ Em.n.:mn: suonpuo) jybnoiqg

1Qa3 "wre g pijep
(v20z ‘62 "bny ‘Aepsiny] pases|ay)

$202Z ‘Lz ysnbny

sSexa]
Jojiuopy 3ybno.iqg °s'n



Water Weekly

For the week of 09/02/24

Water conditions

The latest drought map for conditions
as of August 27 shows an increase in
drought area for the fourth consecutive
week. Drought has reached its

largest extent since November 2023.
Widespread rainfall over the Labor Day
weekend should at least slow drought
expansion on next week’s map.

Drought conditions
48% now

40% a week ago

26% three months ago
76% a year ago

Intensity

[ ] None el

[ 1 po Abnormally dry Map courtesy of the
D1 Moderate drought ] U.S. Drought Monitor
D2 Severe drought

I D3 Extreme drought

I D4 Exceptional drought

Map courtesy of the
U.S. Drought Monitor

Drought change in the
last month

The area of the state impacted by drought
expanded almost 28 percentage points in
the last month, the second largest expansion
during August in the last 25 years. In the
northern half of the state, large areas saw
two or three classes of degradation.

Key
(B 5 Class degradation
-_ 4 Class degradation
| 3 Class degradation
2 Class degradation
1 Class degradation
No change
1 Class improvement
| 2 Class improvement
B s class improvement
Bl 2 class improvement
B s ciass improvement

By Dr. Mark Wentzel, Hydrologist, Office of Water Science and Conservation www.twdbh.texas.gov
Kellen McMurry, Government Relations | Kellen.McMurry@twdb.texas.gov | 512-475-1589
Media Relations | MediaRelations@twdb.texas.gov | 512-463-5129 9 X n m




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Mitigation Fund Manager’s Report
August 2024

On August 21%, T went to Ottine to meet with Dale Shelton to discuss possible mitigation.

On August 23™, T went to Ottine to the Shelton location to review work that needs to be done,




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Field Technician Report
August 2024

On August 1%, T went to observe water well development with Friedel Drilling/J-Bar-B in Waelder, TX. Then,
went to observe Drillink/Holmes Food Inc. on County Road 447 in Waelder, TX

On August 2%, T went to County Road 447 in Waelder, TX and monitored well development with
Drillink/Holmes Food Inc.

On August 7%, I observed water well development with One Source Drilling/Cochran at 6393 FM 1680,
Flatonia, TX.

On August 9", I went to 6393 FM 1680 Flatonia, TX to monitor water
Source/Cochran. "

Il development with One

On August 15", I went to northcentral Gonzales County and applied flags at water wells MWCZ #9 and MWCZ

# 10.

On August 19%, I went to 3404 County Road 397 Gonzales, TX to observe Wat er well development with
Herbold/Holden. c

s Cochran Well. Then; 1 went to Waelder,
went to check on the borehole at Black

On August 20, T went to Flatonia, TX to obtain a water level
TX to Holmes Food Inc. Well to monitor well development. Th
Rock Saltwater Disposal on FM 284 Waelder,

On August 22™, T went to 3404 County Road 397 in Gonzales TX to obtam water level on the Holden well.
Then, I went to Harwood, TX t¢ obtain a water level:at the H. lm/Johnson Farms Well at Lot # 16.

On August 26", T per fmmed a pH and conductlvny readings at the Schrmdt s test well, District 1D T049, on
County Road 443 Waelder, TX. Then I w Srmley, TX:-to monitor new well development with H20 Well
Services/Niemeier o '

On August 28% I went to Smi ey TX to observe ne{i'f'ﬁéllj_d.é;feiopment with H20 Well Services/Niemeier.



No. XXXX

RESOLUTION DECLARING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM OF THE
GONZALES COUNTY UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION
DISTRICT ON PROCESSING NEW NON-EXEMPT OPERATING PERMIT
APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO AMEND NON-EXEMPT
OPERATING PERMITS

WHEREAS, the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District (the
“District”) was created by the Texas Legislature to provide for the conservation, preservation,
protection, recharging, and prevention of waste of groundwater regarding the aquifers within the
boundaries of the District;

WHEREAS, the District was also created to protect property rights, balance the
conservation and development of groundwater to meet the needs of this State, and use the best
available science in the conservation and development of groundwater through rules developed,
adopted, and promulgated by the District;

WHEREAS, pursuant to rulemaking authority granted to the District in Tex. Water Code
36.101 and other legal authority, the Board of Directors has adopted rules and orders designed to
regulate the use of groundwater within the District’s boundaries (“Rules”);

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors is considering amending the rules to better establish
production limitations;

WHEREAS, processing applications for new permits or amendments to increase existing
permits during consideration of the draft rule amendments may further complicate the rulemaking
process.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that effective immediately upon adoption of
this resolution until lifted by action of the Board, in order to fulfill its obligations to regulate the
groundwater in the District, the Board of Directors hereby:

(1) directs the District, through the General Manager, to cease all activities related
to accepting applications for any new non-exempt operating permits and any amendments to
non-exempt operating permits if those amendments would result in an increase in authorized
groundwater production (‘“Prohibited Applications™); and

(2) directs the District, through the General Manager, to continue to accept, review
and process pending applications of any type already received by the District prior to enacting
the moratorium and accept, review, and process exempt well registrations, non-exempt
operating permit renewals, amendments to non-exempt permits that do not increase the
authorized groundwater production amount, permit ownership transfers, and replacement
wells so long as each request does not result in an increase in authorized production
(“Exceptions”);



(3) directs the General Manager to accept and process applications to permit existing
wells that require an operating permit under the District rules

(4) directs the General Manager to update the Board quarterly regarding the
processing of any Exceptions.

(5) FURTHERMORE, the Board of Directors intends that the moratorium on
Prohibited Applications only applies to applications received on or after the effective date of
this resolution and will not affect applications currently pending before the District.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE on September 10, 2024.

Bruce Ticken, President

ATTEST:

Barry Miller, Secretary/Treasurer



Tax Year Tax Rate Taxable Value Taxable Value/100 Tax
0.000000 $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $0.00
Tax Rate 23-24 (.002935 $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $145,253.54
Gonzales County 0.003000  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $148,470.40
0.003125  $4,949,013,207.00 $49 490,132.07 $154,656.66
0.003150  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $155,883.92
0.003174  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $157,081.68
0.003500  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,480,132.07 $173,215.48
0.003735  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,480,132.07 $184,845.64
0.003947  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $195,337.55
0.003999  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $197,911.04
(0.004000  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $197,960.53
0.004500  $4,949,013,207.00 $40,490,132.07 $222,705.59
0.004600  $4,948,013,207.00 $49,4980,132.07 $227.654.61
(.004700  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $232,603.62
Tax Year Tax Rate Taxable Value Taxable Value/100 Tax
0.000000 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $0.00
Tax Rate 23-24 0.002935 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,269.31
Caldwell County 0.003000 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,474.59
0.003125 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9.869.37
0.003150 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,048.32
0.003174 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $10,024 12
0.003500 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $11,053.69
0.003735 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $11,795.87
0.003947 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $12,465.40
0.003999 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $12,629.63
0.004000 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $12,632.79
0.004500 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,1986.92 $14,211.89
0.004600 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $14,527.71
0.004700 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $14,843.53
Tax Year Tax Rate Taxable Value Taxable Value/100 Tax
0.000000  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,5678,328.99 $0.00
Tax Rate 23-24 0.002604 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 5136,913.97 (24-26 tto-New Revenus Rals
Gonzales/Caldwell 0.002817 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $148,113.15 (24-25 voter Approval Rate 1.058% Increase)
Combined 0.002900 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $152,477.15
0.002925 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,678,328.99 $153,791.61
0.002950 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $155,106.07
0.002990 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $157,209.20
0.003000  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $157,734.99
0.003125  $5,257.832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $164,307.28
0.003150  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,576,328.99 $165,621.74
(.003174  $5,257.832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $166,883.62 (23-24 Tax Rate)
0.003500  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,678,328.99 $184.024.15
0.003735  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $196,380.06
0.003947  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,678,328.99 $207,526.66

{24-25 bo-New Revenue Rate
{24-25 Voter Approval Rate 1.058% increase)

{23-24 Tax Rate}



8E L6 PP8LS
(z6'0£0'€51$)
(00°002'¥.$)

0£8.2'cze'T$

JAd 5202-+202 I1BJOoL
S2-¥Z Ad wouag/sniding 1ebpng
sasuadx3 Janon) O] puBH U0 Ysed

#¢-€¢ A4 PUEH U0 Ysed psjewnsy

ANVH NO HSVO d3.1VdIOILLNY

(Z6°0£0'ESHS)

|[(6z°8ZL"20%3) ||

(zoeps'22e9) (22 L29'€ELS) ||

sSN1dyNs/Loid3d
L L8V LLES 8c'95.'6¢€$ |[00°0% llecoss'6c€$ [[ez'019'99e$ |[ONIANND TIV TV.LOL
00°0% 00°0% lloo0% [loo'0g [ejoL J2jsuel]
| spund Jeaj J0lid Wol4 J19isuel] go0
9z'89¢°1£Z% 9Z'718'961L% ||00°0% 9zZ'v18°961$ ||c9 209°czes [IBI0L ISRlelU| pue seey
00°000'S+$ 00°005'0L$ 00°005'0L$ ZL'E6'ers pauie3 jsasay|
9Z'99¢'081$ 9Z'v1£'98L$ 9zZ¥LE'98Ls | 8Z'850'€LL $ 834 Jodx3
00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°LL¥$ $994 Jwiad
000% 00°0% 00°0% T Al TANE _ 8LUODU| SNO3UEB|[BISI
JuswasInquiay 9salaiu| ‘sead L00
SL'ELLOVLS ZL'zvezrls ||00°0% ZLZv6'zhls ||09zoo‘eris |eloL uonosyion xe|
00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 8L'861% Spunyay xe| ssa
(00°000'2$) (00°000°$) (0o'000'2$) |[(zoese'ts) uoIsSSILIWOY S587
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 999781 $ Jsassiu] g Aeusd
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% 82°090'Z%$ xe] juenbuiieq
GL'ELL'8YLS ANAZ R A% ZL'ZP6'prLS || 0L 18l 0rLS Xe| juslnd
uon29|0] Xel 900
139ang l3asang SINIWANINY 3lva SIHODILYD
a3sododd J3aN3InY 139an8 139ang Ol aailviiLsa
SZ-¥e ¥T-€T ¥Z-£2 ¥Z-£2T ¥Z-£2
JNOINI dOMNDD
££715°0£8% 19'vag'or.$ |[oo00z'vss- [lovr'e6z'299% [[00°282°0068 SISNIAX3 1TV IV.LOL
9Z°165'c$ £9°1.2°C% 00°0$ £8°1L2'e% 05°'L9¥'Z$ [ejo] esuadx3 xel
97 /6€'€$ £8'1.2'c$ £8°122'¢$ 0S°'1L9¥'Z$ asuadx3 xeL/e.eys 19Bpng Jousiq (esielddy
ekl 7 sasuadx3 xej §00
00000‘0c2$  |loo-o00‘czLs [00000°28$  [l0o"000‘01z$ [j0r'ScziOoLs  [|leloL ssuadx3 3osloid
00°000'52$ 00°0% maN(loo 0% 00°0% Apnis uonoelaju| Ja)nby
00°000°0%$ 00°0% maN|(lo0 0% 000% snsus) douojnQ ozuled
00°005'/$ 00°000'Z1L$ ssaiboid Ul|o0’000'Z1L$ 00°0% 1pny Ausdold pesesn
00°000'ZL$ 00°000'02$ ssauiboid u))|00°000°02% 000$ fjigeqoid asouepisgng
00°000°Z<$ 00°000°0%$ ssaifboid u|00°000°0F$ 00°0$ Jodey umopmelq uisiseq
00°000°02$ 00°000°0€$ ssaiboid u00°000'0€$ 00°0$ Hoday [enjoy SA Bullapo 1sod
00°0% 00°000°0L$ 00°000'0L$ 12°012'9% sesuadx3 uoRoa|3
00°000'0L$ 00°0$ 00°000'0L$  [j00°000'0L$ 000% weJBoid uonosdsul [l
00°000'6.$ 00°0% 00°000'6/$  ||00°000°G.$ 000% weiboid Buibbnid 119/
00°000'Z$ 00°0$ 00°000'2Z$ 00°000'2$ 00°0% aoueusjulely B ‘dinb3 Jopiooay TAA
00°005°9% 00°000°LL$ |lo0'000°LLS || €€ ¥20'YS Jleq MO g Buiss | Isjempunols)
~ sesuadxgjosfoid v00
00°000°9% 00°000°c$ 00°000°€$ 00°000°9% 6£708°C$ [e3o] asuadx3 Aepng [exded
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0% sleusjely souaieley
00°000'c$ 00°0% 00°000°€$ 00°000°c$ 00°0$ juawdinb3 800
00°000'c$ 00°000'c$ 00°000°€$ BE¥08'C$ juawdinb3 piald/qen
. R et T sasuadx3g Aepno [eded £00
00°081°262% 00°08¥'65¢$ [00°00Z'v9L$- [[00089°P6LS |€8'€96°L62% ||iBI0L Bsusdx3 Bunelado
00'00S'G$ 00°005'G$ 00°005'6$ 00°005'S$ (uepueis/yieH) BunsoH aseqeleq
00°005% 00°005% 00°005% 00°25+$ SoUBUSIUIBI SHSTRMN
00°000'G1L$ 00°00£€Ls  |[oo00E LS 00°000'GL$  ||6G 8FP'SS ELLEETIETSIIEYY
00°005'4$ 00°000°L$ 00°005'9% 00°005'L$ ¥2°018$ sBunss|n pue |eaBlL
00°000'v$ 00°000'¥$ 00°000'7$ 96°/85'c$ sauoyd |[@p/euoydela
00°000'€$ 00'000'5% (00°005'¥$)  [l0000S$ 56'126'7% S82[ON paysijand
00°00.% 00°009% (00°001L%) 00°005$ 98659 abejsod
00°000'2$ 00°000°'Z% 00°000'2$ LZ'GLE' LS salddng 2010
00°0% 00'008'9% (00°008'9%) [j00°0% 00°9z.'9% YMYD [eBaT]
00°000°08% 00'000'09L$ |[(00°000'09L$) |[00°0% 0¢'/92'67L$ wHEg9 HYOS [eba
00°000'GL$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% sainpagold Buliesy
00°000°'0$ 00°000'0¢$ 00°000'0€$  [|00°000'0€$ Buikggo
00°000°09% 00°000'09% 00°000'09%  [[£0°L2E'ceS |ebe
00'000'0€$ 00°000°6Z$ 00°000'6%$ 00°000'0€$  [|60°695'12S$ juBynsuoD
00'002% 00°002%$ 00°00Z$ 00vrL$ (1s0H Bunsap sulup) buneao o9
00°00Z$ 00°00Z$ 00°002$ 00°9%L$ (xogdouq) sbelols eleQ o1U038|g
00°000°L1L$ 00°000°LL$ 00°000°LLE  |[LZ'900°0L% (suoinyjos siieniin) 80IA18S 1|
00°005'c$ 00°00%'€$ (00°009%) 00°008'2$ 257 LBE'ES (MoogyoInD/14S3) sepelbdn aiemyog
00°086°'L$ 00°086'L% 00°086'L% SEvLLLS D1AD $5809Y Uiy
00°00€$ 00°0% 00°00£$ 00°00£% 00'0% aoueuaulel dinb3
00°000'%$ 00°000'+$ 00°000°'%% vZ 1.G'ES (xeq/ueag/AdoD Yyoond) [ejusy "dinb3
00°009't$ 00°055'+$ (00°050°1$)  |[00°00G'ES 90'605'7$ {ssogng/INL) @oueinsu| sahojdw3
00°000'+$ 00°000't$ (00°00%%) 00°000'c$ 00'68¢'c$ aouelnsu| Buipling 20
00°005'Z$ 00°005'2$ 00°005'Z$ WA (0913/181B VW USBIL) SBIINN 200
00°000'Z$ 00°05€'G$ (oo'0se'ss)  [[o0°0% ¥8'€0€'6% Jiedey Buiping
00°000'2$ 00°000°2$ 00°000'Z$ oF'G66$ (DV/IeuoNUBPASad)80uUBUBIUIBI 30140
00°005'L$ 00°0% 00°0051$  |00°00S°L$ 00°0% juswasianpy/Bunaxiepn
00°000'€$ 00°000'€$ 00°000°€$ 89'098'Z%$ s884 IpNYy
00°004$ 00°004$ 00°00.$ L0'929% uonieonp3
00°005'2$ 00°005'2% 00°005'2%$ 006218 sanq uoneIoossy
00°00S €5 1100°005 ST O NEISAS 760
s0'ce6'c6 ¢ |8 zeLeszs 00703 16°2pe'cses [|gr-2Lg'ogLs |[ieroL asuadx3 jjoifed
00000t ¢ [o0'0% 00°0% 00°0$ @oueInsuU| YjesH sakojdwsg
28°006't ¢ ||PLesL'vs ¥1'85.'F% gL'8er'es yole N JuBWaIRY dOMNDD
¥2'692'C ¢ llorerles oL'erL'es 00°0% uonesuadwo) SISO
SS'LIE'Y ¢ l68LL0'FS 68°120'v$ £6'005% juswhojdwaun ajel1g
99'65€'LL  $ /0L ¥BEQLS 0. ¥6€'9L$ 6£°00L'€LS (s1eoipay % SS) YOI
£5ve6'69 ¢ [l09°268°29% 09'/68'29% £1'8£5'02% JaBeuely uoneBmI 19/
000526z $ ||00000°'s2% 0Z2'60.'6Z$ 00°845'€Z$ uejoluyoe] pjel4 awi] Hed
00°0LL'Z ¢ lo0'0£L28 00°0.L'2$ 000% (epiv so0) Aresodwa ]
SO LLeLE ¢ |ovo6tsES 00°000'92$ £6'€9.'vT$ Aejes spiy 200
9L'gZr'e6  $|S6°90L'06% $6'90.'06% zoerl'ess fejes sebeuepy
00°000'6L ¢ [|00005'6% 00'005'6% 0005168 ~ Kejeg siopaing
i R sasuadx3 [jo1fed 10O
13oana 139ang SLNINANINY a1va S3RODILVD
a3sododd a3AN3INY 139ansg 1394ang Ol d3lvYnILs3
SZvZ $2-£2T yZ-€2 yZ-£2 ¥e-£C

S3SNIdX3 AOMNIO

19Bpng §20z-¥20z pasodoidnebpng yz0z-£20Z papuay
anan Aunon sejezuosy




“Teaf Iepuaed oS JO ] Jq030Q) 240§eq JO U0 WIISI JU) 01 9o, 1odxy XX ay; Jo justided ywal [[ym XX e Hodxg

XX Y] JO JUNOWE dY JO JBak Jepusjed yora Jo | ¢ ISnSny Uey) Joje] ou XX AJHOU [[Im JOMISI( AU} ‘WULWRITY SIYl JO ULe] 2 Supnp AJjenuuz SWnuiuod pue €107 Ut sumundag 7

(294 HodxXg WX, 2UL) 10MISI(] 29U PUB XX U22am1aq 291 odxe ps1enogau 213 1 JUNOWe S ], IB2A 125png 181 10] anp $2XE]

WI2IOFRA DB $$9] puR *(_ ssaniuung Sunsixg,,) 7107 ‘7] 1equsaoN 03 Joud 19mmsig auz £q peaoidde 10 penss] alom suoliezLIoyne Jo syiwiad ssoym siajrodxs woly Jeak 1908png Jey)
J0] anp $99) 110dxd JO JNOULE 21 S J6Spng Jenuue s JoLHsIg Y JO (,2IeyS S5BIUL0I9] . XX,.) %8 TT JO WUnOWR ) Ul 10LISI(T sU) 01 juswided [enuue ue SYeW 0} §92138 XX 1

L ZvY'062$ LO'EVO'Y9ZS  26°0£0°967%

12 180'8¢L$ 162PP'9LLS | co6b2'8L2g] = (%l vP) vHED

862£S'669 LLZ0€'068 | £5°2P9'6918] = (%T¥E) VALY

90'220'€9% ee26226% | L28c9'2018) = (%2°12) YMHD
%01 $Z0Z-£20Z Ad 5202
+ ¥Z20Z-£20Z Ad -$20Z Ad
pajabpng

Z6°0£0°96¥$ soxe] - Awm& <:o< + SMVS + 09718S) -196png QOMNDD = 994 pejenobeN
S . 934 Q3LVILODAN VHEO/VMHEY/VMED _
SL'cLierLs
" SAXVL dIS040dd §202-¥202 GOMNOD -

£8'Z15'0£8%

- 139an8 §202-¥20Z AOMNID
92'89£°981¢$ S@4 Hodsuel) Js3 [ejol
£eT196'28 (00'196'2$ = BAe) 00'Z9Z'€$ 00°082°Z$ 00'2/8°T$
£etz ceoe | bebz
© $334 14OdX3 OSM VNOV

82'8¢Z°16$ ..mmo o X _m.m ooo E_mm oom wmm 6¥9°€ = 4-08 00T b= m«manm_ vmow w>><m
S . - 334 LYOdX3 SMVS

59°891°26% =G¢0'0 X _mm ooo Emm 000° @3. 989'c = Y-0B QT ¥LE'LL = mme:wm_ v,NON OOuuww
. ' 334 1MOdX3 991SS ¢ g

ajewns3 ea4 pejenobaN §Z0Z - ¥Z0Z J1eeA |2Isld
IOLIISI(] UCIIBAISSUOYD JS)EAN punolBiapun Ajunon sa3jezuog



Gonzales County UWCD
2023-2024 Amended Budget
2024- 2025 Proposed Budget

Eastern Mitigation Fund

GCUWCD EXPENSES

23-24 23-24 23-23 4 23-24 24-25
ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED | PROPOSED
CATEGORIES TO DATE AMENDMENTS BUDGET BUDGET
002 Operating Expenses ‘
Audit Fees $2,866.66 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Legal $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Operating Expense Total $2,866.66 $5,500.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $3,000.00
003 Capital Outlay Expenses
Field Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
Capital Outlay Expense Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
004 Project Expenses
Groundwater Testing $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Well Mitigation (contractors) $40,000.00 || $310,000.00 $0.00 || $310,000.00 | $282,000.00
Project Expense Total|  $40,000.00 || $312,500.00 $0.00 || $312,500.00 | $282,000.00
TOTAL ALL EXPENSES|  $40,000.00 || $318,000.00 $0.00 | $318,000.00 || $289,000.00
GCUWCD INCOME
23-24 23-24 23-23 4 23-24 24-25
ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED | PROPOSED
CATEGORIES TO DATE AMENDMENTS BUDGET BUDGET
006 Export Fee Surcharges ;
ARWA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
GBRA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
Export Fee Surcharge Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 || $100,000.00
007 Fees, Interest, Reimbursement
Mitigation Fund MM $4,370.30 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00
Interest Total $4,370.30 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 |  $1,500.00
TOTAL ALL FUNDING $101,500.00

DEFICIT/SURPLUS

($187,500.00)

Estimated Cash on Hand FYE 23-24
Budget Surplus/Deficit

TOTAL 2024 - 2025 FYE

ANTICIPATED CASH ON HAND

$282,600.99
($187,500.00)

$95,100.99




Gonzales County UWCD
2023-2024 Amended Budget

Western Mitigation Fi

2024-2025 Proposed Budget

CATEGORIES
002 Operating Expens
Audit Fees
Legal

003 Cap
Field Equipment
Office Equipment
.. Capital Outlay Expense Total
004 Project Expenses.
Ground Water Testing
Well Mitigation {contractors)

Project Expense Total

TOTAL ALL EXPENSES

TO DATE

©'GCUWCD EXPENSES -

23-24
ESTIMATED

$2.866.68
$0.00

$2,866.66

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$2,866.66

23-24 BUDGET

$3,000.00
$2.500.00
$5,500.00

$2.500.00
$1 000,00
$3.500.00

$2,500.00
$300,000.00
$302,500.00
$311,500.00

23-24
BUDGET

AMENDMENTS

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

23-24
AMENDED
BUDGET

$3,000.00
$2,500.00
$5,50

$2.500.00
$1.000.00
$3.500.00

$2,500.00
$300,000.00
$302,500.00

$311,500.00

$3,000.00
$0.00
$3,000.00

$2,500.00
$1,000.00
~ $3,500.00

' $2.500.00
$175,000.00
$177,500.00

- GCUWCD INCOME

$184,000.00

Initial Payment Total

007 Fees, Interest, Reimbursement

23-24
ESTIMATED
TO DATE

58,223.20
$64,518.06
$61,352.21

$184,093.47

Mitigation Fund MM
Interest Total

”i’ransfer Total
 TOTAL ALL FUNDING

$1,913.28

23-24 BUDGET

,058.52
$71,195.51
$59,234.73

$165,488.76

$200.00
$200.00

23-24
BUDGET
AMENDMENTS

$0.00

23-24
AMENDED
BUDGET

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$1,913.28

$0.00

,223.00
$64,518.00
$61,352.00

$184,093.00

$1,500.00

$1,500.00

$185,593.00

$1,593.00

Estimated Cash on Hand FYE 23-24
Budget Surplus/Deficit

TOTAL 2024- 2025 FYE

ANTICIPATED CASHON HAND =~

$166,970.31
$1,593.00

$168,563.31




What Is a Consent Agenda?
Consent Agenda / Consent Agendas
A consent agenda — or a consent calendar according to Robert’s Rules of Order — is a valuable
tool used to streamline board meeting processes. It is a component of the meeting agenda that
presents multiple routine, non-controversial topics as one agenda item. The grouped items can be
approved by filing a single motion and voting on it. A board member can always ask for the
removal of a particular item from the consent agenda if they believe it requires further discussion
before approval.
Which items would you find in a consent agenda?
The following items are typically included in a consent agenda:
e Routine or recurring items such as the previous meeting’s minutes.
e Procedural decisions, including committee and staff appointments that need confirmation.
« Non-controversial topics that do not require discussion such as department and financial
reports.
o Items requiring an official vote that the members have previously discussed and agreed
upon, including final approvals of reports and proposals.
Benefits of a consent agenda
Here are the benefits of a consent agenda:

¢ Enhanced productivity

Grouping recurring and already-addressed issues minimises the discussion around these topics,
thereby saving the board’s valuable time and improving meeting efficiency.

¢ Reduced meeting fatigue
Going over and approving each routine item that does not require further deliberation can lead to
meeting fatigue. By grouping these items in a consent agenda, directors can approve them all in
one motion instead of enduring the process of filing multiple motions.

e Shifting the focus to more important matters

A consent agenda leaves more room for the board to redirect their focus towards strategic
planning and taking care of critical company matters during meetings.

Best practices for a consent agenda
The best practices for a consent agenda include:

» Only including non-controversial items



For a consent agenda to work properly, all the items must be familiar to the board, require no
discussion and have no prior conflicts.

« Using clear and concise descriptions
The topics should be well-defined so that no further clarification is required by any member.
o The opportunity for members to remove items

The board members should have the option to remove an item from the consent agenda if they
think that it should not be approved without deliberation.



2RECEIVED AUG 28 «ith

Fred Loya Sr.
10279 HWY 304
Harwood, TX 78632

August 21, 2024

Board of Directors

Gonzales County Underground
Water Conservation District

P. O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629

Re: Permit Renewal
Permit GCP-02-09-06
Well IDs P21 & P109

Dear Boar of Directors

As owners we respectfully request renewal of our Permit GCP-02-09-06 at the
original pumping rate of #gpm. We greatly appreciate your attention to the
renewal of our Permit.

Fred Loya Sr..



i

Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

522 Sainf Martthew Streef
P.O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629
Phlione; 830.672.1047
Fax: 830.672,1387

Aggregate Drilling and Production Permit
Irrigation Wells
Permit No.: GCP-02-09-06
GCUWCD Well ID No.: P021 & P109

Permit Issued To: E P Valley luvestments, LP

Mailing Address: M. Fred Loya
1800 Lee Trevino, Suite 201
El Pasao, TX 79936

Telephore Number:  915.628.5130

Date Original Application Filed (Well P021): July 05, 2006

Date of Public Hearing on Original Application (Well P021): September 12, 2006
Date Well Original Permit Granted (Well P021): September 12, 2006

Date First Permit Renewal Request Granted (Well P021): September 09, 2008
Date Second Permit Renewal Granted (Well P021): September 10, 2013

Date Third Permit Renewal Granted (Well P021); September 11, 2018

Date Aggregate Permit Application Filed (Wells P021 and P109): August 28, 2019

Date Aggregate Permit Application Granted (Wells PO21 and P109): October 08, 2619

Current Aggregate Permit Expiration Date (Wells P21 and P109): October 08, 2024

Aggregate Production Permit Provisions: Total production is limited to 500 acre-feet per year

The rate of production from a well or well field may vary throughout the year; however, the tolal production in
a calendar year beginning on January st and ending on December 31st shall not exceed the permitied
production for that year. Individual well production rates are allowed to increase up 1o 150% of the permitted
production rate during peak demand periods

Aquifer Production Allocation: 1.0 acre-foot per acre from the Carrizo Aquifer

Maximum Pumping Capacify of Water Wells: Welf P021 is limited to 720 gpm and Welt P109 is limited
to 610 gpm by the minimum weil-to-property boundary offset distance in Rule 18.A

Number of Acres Irvigated: 170

Additional Condiiions Applicable to Operating Permits:

A, General Conditions

Acceptance of the permit by the person to whom it is issued constitutes acknowledgment of and agreement {o

comply with all of the terms, provisions, conditions, limitations, and restrictions of these rules including, but
ot limited to, the following:

Page 1 of 3



B.

10.

Permits are granted in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Water Code and the Rules,
Management Plan and Orders of the District, and acceptance of the pernit constitutes an
acknowledgment and agreement that the perinitice will comply with the Texas Water Code, the
District Rules, Management Plan, Orders of the District Board, and all the terms, provisions,
conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions embeodied in a permit.

A permit confers no vested rights in the holder, and it may be revoked or suspended, or its terms may
be modified or amended pursuant to the provisions of the District’s Rules.

The operation of a well for the authorized withdrawal must be conducted in a non-wasteful manner.
In the event the groundwater is to be transported a distance greater than one-half mile from the well,
it must be transported by pipeline to prevent waste caused by evaporation and percolation.

The permittee must keep records of the amount of groundwater produced and the purpose of the
production and such records shall be available for inspection by District representatives. [mmedtate
written notice must be given to the District in the event production exceeds the quantity authorized
by a permit, ot the well is either polluted or causing pollution of the aquifer. Youn must supply
written documentation of your water usage annually fo the District.

A well site must be accessible to District representatives for inspection, and the permittee agrees to
fully cooperate in any reasonable inspection of the well and well site by District representatives.

Applications for which a permit is issued are incorporated in the permit and thus permits are granted
on the basis of and contingent upon the accuracy of the information supplied in the application and
any amendments to the application. A finding that false information has been supplied is grounds for
immediate revocation of a permit. In the event of conflict between the provisions of a permit and the
contents of the application, the provisions of the permit shall control.

Suspension or revocation of a permit may require immediate cessation of all activities granted by the
permit.

Violation of a permit’s terms, conditions, requirements or special provisions is punishable by civil
penalties provided by the District’s Rules.

Where ever special provisions in a permit are inconsistent with other provisions or District Rules, the
special provisions prevail.

Changes in the withdrawal and use of groundwater during the term of a permit may not be made
without prior approval of a permit amendment authorizing the change issued by the District,

Change of Ownership

An operating permit may be {ransferred to another person through change of ownership of the well provided
all permit conditions remain in compliance with District Rules and the District is notified, in advance, of the
proposed change in ownership. The General Manager is authorized to effectuate the permit transfer,

C.

Inforcement of Rules

All Rules duly adopted, promulgated and published by this District shalt be enforced as provided for under
Chapter 36, Texas Water Code.

1.

The District may enforce Chapter 36, Texas Water Code and its Rules by injunction, mandatory
injunction, or other appropriate remedy in a court of competent jurisdiction.

Page 2 of 3



The Board by rule may set reasonable civit penalties for breach of any rule of the District not to
exceed $10,000 per day per violation, and each day of a continuing violation constifutes a separate
violation in accordance with Chapter 36.102 of the Texas Water Coxle,

A penally under Chapler 36, Texas Water Code or the Distrie’s Rules is in addition to any other
penalty provided by the law of this stale and may be enforced by complaints filed in & court of
competent jurisdiction in Gonzales County.

If the District prevails in any suit to enforce its Rules, it may, in the same action, recover reasonable
fees for altorneys, expert witnesses, and other costs incurred by the District before the court. The
amount of the attorney’s fees shall be fixed by (he court,

The Board shall notify the appropriate person or entity alleged to have commitfed a violation
of the rules of the District by certified mail return receipt requested or by publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District of the date of the public hearing to hear
testimony about the circumstances regarding the enforcement action. Notice must be provided
at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.

The Board, either on its own motion or upon receipt of sufficient written complaint, may at
any time, after due notice o all interested parlies, cile any person operating a well within the
District to appear before it and require them to show cause why their operating authority or
permit should not be suspended, canceled, revoked or otherwise restricted or limited for
failure to comply with the Rules or Orders of the Board, any permit issued by the Board, or
any relevant Staie statutes. A decision on suspending, cancelling or revoking permit authority
may be contested under Rule 25,

Bruce Tieken
President
Gonzales County UWCD

\O-08 -20)9

Date

Page 3 of 3



RECEIVED AUG 1 2 2024

August 12, 2024

Board of Directors

Gonzales County Underground
Water Conservation District
P.O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629

Dear Board of Directors:
August 12, 2024

Re: Permit Renewal
Permit 10-15-01

As owners we respectfully request renewal of our Permit 10-15-01 at the original pumping rate of
375 gpm. We greatly appreciate your attention to the renewat of our permit.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

Troy Kisner
Kisner Enterprises, LLC
12 Scotsmoor Ct.
Sugar Land, TX 77479

832-483-2604



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

522 Saint Matthew Sireet
P.O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629
Phone: 830.672.1047
Fax: 830.672.1387

Drilling and Production Permit
Irrigation Well
Permit No.: 10-15-01
GCUWCD Well ID: P05

Permit Issued To: Kisner Enterprises, LLC

Mailing Address: 12 Scotsmoor Ct.
Sugarland, TX 77479

Telephone Number:  §32-483-2604

Date Original Application Filled: August 15, 2015
Date Original Permit Granted: October 13, 2015
Date Second Permit Renewal Request Granted: October 08, 2019

Operating Permit Provigions: Total production is limited to 606 acre-feet per year

The rate of production from a well or well field may vary throughout the year; however, the total production in
a calendar year beginning on January 1st and ending on December 31st shall not exceed the permitied
production for that year. Individual well production rates are allowed fo increase up to 150% of the permitted
production rate during peak demand periods

Aquifer Production Allocation: 1.0 acre-foot per acre from the Carrizo Aquifer

Maxtmum Pumping Capacity of Water Well: 901 gpm by the maximum well-lo-property boundary offset
distance in Rule [8.A

Term of Production Permit: 5 years

A permittee holding a drilling and production permit due 1o expire shall file a written request to reissue the
permit to the General Manager no later than 30 days prior to the expiration date of the permit. The permit
shall remain effective until final Board action on the reissue of the permit. Requests fo reissue a permil shall be
subject fo review for substantial compliance with the rides of the District by the General Manager.

Any permit subject 1o reissue shall gffer due consideration and an cffirmative vote by the Board be reissued
for a period of five years in accordance 1o the rules in effect at the time of reissue.
a. is delinquent in paying a fee required by the district;
b is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive violation of a district permit, order, or
rule that has not been settled by agreement with the district or a final adjudication, or
e.  has not paid a civil penaliy or has otherwise fidled to comply with an order resulting fiom a final
adfudication of a violation of a disirict permit, order, or rule.

An application for renewal of a permit that also requests a major amendment is subject io notice and
hearing, and final approval by the Board, During consideration of a contested renewal application, the
permit shall remain effective until final Board action on renewal of the permit.

Page 1 of 3



Additional Conditions Applicable to Drilling and Production Permit:

A,

General Conditions

Acceptance of the permit by the person to whom it is issued constitutes acknowledgment of and agreement to
comply with all of the terms, provisions, conditions, limitations, and restrictions of these rules including, but
not limited to, the following:

1,

Permits are granted in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Water Code and the Rules,
Management Plan and Orders of the District, and acceptance of the permit constitutes an

- acknowledgment and agreement that the permittee will comply with the Texas Water Code, the

B.

District Rules, Management Plan, Orders of the District Board, and all the terms, provisions,
conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions embodied in a permit.

A permit confers no vested rights in the holder, and it may be revoked or suspended, or its terms may
be modified or amended pursuant to the provisions of the District’s Rules.

The operation of a well for the authorized withdrawal must be conducted in a non-wasteful mannet.
In the event the groundwater is to be transported a distance greater than one-half mile from the well,
it must be transported by pipeline to prevent waste caused by evaporation and percolation.

The permittes must keep records of the amount of groundwater produced and the purpose of the
production and such records shall be available for inspection by District representatives. Immediate
written notice must be given to the District in the event production exceeds the quantity authorized
by a permit, ot the well is either polluted or causing pollution of the aquifer. You must supply
written documentation of your water usage annually to the District,

A well site must be accessible to District representatives for inspection, and the permitiee agrees to
fully cooperate in any reasonable inspection of the well and well site by District representatives.

Applications for which a permit is issued are incorporated in the permit and thus permits are granted
on the basis of and contingent upon the accuracy of the information supplied in the application and
any amendments to the application. A finding that false information has been supplied is grounds for
immediate revocation of a permit. In the event of conflict between the provisions of a permit and the
contents of the application, the provisions of the permit shall control.

Suspension or revocation of & permit may require inumediate cessation of all activities granted by the
permit.

Violation of a permit’s terms, conditions, requirements or special provisions is punishable by civil
penalties provided by the District’s Rules,

Where ever special provisions in a permit are inconsistent with other provisions or District Rules, the
speciaf provisions prevail.

. Changes in the withdrawal and use of groundwater during the term of a permit may not be made

without prior approval of a permit amendment authorizing the change issued by the District.

Change of Ownership

A drilling or production permit may be transferred to another person through change of ownership of the well
provided all permit conditions remain in compliance with District Rules and the District is notified, in
advance, of the proposed change in ownership. The General Manager is authorized to effectuate the permit

transfer.

Page 2 of 3



C.

Enforcement of Rules

All Rules duly adopted, promuigated and published by this District shall be enforced as provided for under
Chapter 36, Texas Watet Code,

L

6.

ruce TicKen

The District may enforce Chapter 36, Texas Water Code and its Rules by injunction, mandatory
injunction, or other appropriate temedy in a court of competent jurisdiction.

The Board by rule may set reasonable civil penalties for breach of any rule of the District not to
exceed $10,000 per day per violation, and each day of a continuing violation constitutes a separate
violation in accordance with Chapter 36.102 of the Texas Water Code.

A penalty under Chapter 36, Texas Water Code or the Distriet’s Rules is in addition fo any other
penalty provided by the law of this state and may be enforced by complaints filed in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Gonzales County.

If the District prevails in any suit to enforce its Rules, it may, in the same action, recover reasonable
fees for attorneys, expert witnesses, and other costs incurred by the District before the court. The
amount of the attorney’s fees shall be fixed by the court.

The Board shall notify the appropriate person or entity alleged to have committed a violalion
of the rules of the District by certified mail return receipt requested or by publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District of the date of the public hearing to hear
festimony about the circumstances regarding the enforcement action. Notice must be provided
at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.

The Board, either on its own motion ot upon receipt of sufficient written complaint, may at
any time, affer due notice to all inlerested parties, cite any person operating a well within the
District to appear before it and require them to show cause why their operating autherity or
permit should not be suspended, canceled, revoked or otherwise restricted or limited for
failure to comply with the Rules or Orders of the Board, any permit issued by the Board, or
any relevant State statutes. A decision on suspending, cancelling or revoking permit authority
may be contested under Rufe 25,

/

President
Gonzales County UWCD

Date

Page 3 of 3



RECEIVED AUG 09 2024

Seqpec |
‘L July 16, 2024

Board of Directors
Gonzales County Undergraound
Water Conservation District
P. O, Box 1919
Gonzales, TX 78629
Re: Permit Renewal
Permit GCP-H#-##-H#

0 14 - Dl

As owners we respectfully request renewal of our Permit GCP-##-t#t-##f at the original pumping rate of
#gpm. We greatly appreciate your attention to the renewal of our permit.

Dear Board of Directors:

Thank you,

Sincerely,

Signature

Name
Address

Plews Rewso my Jemi

7/9/3y¢
77



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

505 Saint Mathew
P.O. Box 1919
Gonzales, TX 78629
Phone: 830.672.1047
Fax: 830.672.1387

Drilling and Production Permit
Industrial Supply Well
Permit No.: 10-14-01

Permit Issued To: Seger Family Investments, LLP

Mailing Address: P.O. BoxC
Flatonia, TX 78941

Telephone Number: 361.401.2166

Date of Board Meeting: January 09, 2018
Date Permit Granted: January 09, 2018
Date Permit Renewal Required: January 09, 2023

Operating Permit Provisions: Total production is limited to 380 acre-feet per year

The rate of production from q well or well field may vary throughout the year; however, the total production in
a calendar year beginning on January lst and ending on December 31st shall not exceed the permitted
production for that year. Individual well production rates are allowed to increase up to 150% of the permitted
production rafe during peak demand periods.

Aquifer Production Alocation: 1.0 acre-foof per acte from the Carrizo Aquifer

Maximum Pumping Capacity of Water Well: Limited to 440 gpm by the minimum well-to-property
boundary offset distance in Rule 18.A

Term of Operating Permit: 5 years

A permittee holding a drilling and operating permil due to expire may file a written request {0 renew the permit
1o the General Manager no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of the permil. An operating
permit subject to renewal shall be adviinistratively renewed for a period of five years in accordance 1o the rules
in effect al the time of renewal. Requests fo renew a permit shall be subject to review for substantial
compliance with the rules of the Disirict by the General Manager.

The District is not required to renew a permit under this section {f the applicant:

a.  is delinguent in paying a fee required by the distiict;

b. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive violation of a district permit, order, or
rule that has not been setiled by agreement with the district or a final adjudication, or

. has not paid a civil penalty or has otherwise failed to conply with an order yvesuliing from a final
adjudication of a violation of a district permit, order, or rule,

An application for renewal of a permit that also requests a major amendment is subject fo notice and
hearing, and final approval by the Board, During consideration of a contested renewal application, the
permit shall remain effective until final Board action on renewal of the permit.

Page 1 of 3




Additional Conditions Applicable to Operating Permits:

A.

General Conditions

Acceptance of the permit by the person to whom it is issued constitutes acknowledgment of and agreement to
comply with all of the terms, provisions, conditions, limitations, and restrictions of these rules including, but
not limited to, the following:

1,

[0,

B.

Petimils are granted in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Water Code and the Rules,
Management Plan and Orders of the District, and acceptance of the permit constitutes an
acknowledgment and agreement that the permittee will comply with the Texas Water Code, the
District Rules, Management Plan, Orders of the District Board, and all the terms, provisions,
conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions embodied in a permit.

A permit confers no vested rights in the holder, and it may be revoked or suspended, or its terms may
be modified or amended pursuant to the provisions of the District’s Rules,

The operation of a well for the authorized withdrawal must be conducted in a non-wasteful manner.
In the event the groundwater is to be transported a distance greater than one-half mile from the well,
it must be transported by pipeline to prevent waste caused by evaporation and percolation.

The permittee must keep records of the amount of groundwater produced and the purpose of the
praoduction and such records shall be available for inspection by District representatives. Immediate
written notice must be given to the District in the event production exceeds the quantity authorized
by a permit, or the well is either polluted or causing pollution of the aquifer. 'You must supply
written documentation of your water usage monthly to the District,

A well site must be accessible to District representatives for inspection, and the permitiee agrees to
fully cooperate in any reasonable inspection of the well and well site by District representatives.

Applications for which a permit is issuted are incorporated in the permif and thus permits are granted
on the basis of and contingent upon the aceuracy of the information supplied in the application and
any amendments to the application. A finding that false information has been supplied is grounds for
immediate revocation of a permit. In the event of conflict between the provisions of a permit and the
contents of the application, the provisions of the permit shall control,

Suspension or revocation of a permit may require immediate cessation of all activities granted by the
permit.

Violation of a permit’s terms, conditions, requirements or special provisions is punishable by civil
penalties provided by the District’s Rules.

Where ever special provisions in a permit are inconsistent with other provisions or District Rules, the
special provisions prevail.

Changes in the withdrawal and use of groundwater during the term of a permit may not be made
without prior approval of a permit amendment authorizing the change issued by the District.

Change of Ownership

An operating permit may be transferred to another person through change of ownership of the well provided
all permit conditions remain in compliance with District Rules and the District is notified, in advance, of the
proposed change in ownership. The General Manager is authorized to effectuate the permit transfer.

Page 2 of 3



C.

Enforcement of Rules

All Rules duly adopted, promulgated and published by this District shall be enforced as provided for under
Chapter 36, Texas Water Code.

1.

The District may enforce Chapter 36, Texas Water Code and its Rules by injunction, mandatory
injunction, or other appropriate remedy in a court of competent jurisdiction,

The Board by rule may set reasonable civil penalties for breach of any rule of the District not to
exceed $10,000 per day per violation, and each day of a continuing violation constitutes a separate
violation in accordance with Chapter 36,102 of the Texas Water Code.

A penalty under Chapter 36, Texas Water Code or the District’s Rules is in addition to any other
penalty provided by the law of this state and may be enforced by complainis filed in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Gonzales County.

If the District prevails in any snit to enforce ifs Rules, it may, in the same action, recover reasonable
fees for attorneys, expert witnesses, and other cosls incurred by the District before the court. The
amount of the attorney’s fees shall be fixed by the court.

The Board shall notify the appropriate person or entity alleged to have committed a violation
of the rules of the District by certified mail refurn receipl requested or by publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District of the date of the public hearing to hear
testimony about the circumstances regarding the enforcement action, Notice must be provided
at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.

The Board, either on its own motion or wpon receipt of sufficient written complaint, may at
any time, after due notice to all interested parties, cite any person operating a well within the
District to appear before it and require them to show cause why their operating authority or
permit should not be suspended, canceled, revoked or otherwise restricted or limited for
failure to comply with the Rules or Orders of the Board, any permit issued by the Board, or
any relevant State statutes. A decision on suspending, cancelling or revoking permit authority
may be contested under Rule 25,

Brace Fibken
President
Gonzales County UWCD

/-G-8

Date

Page 3 of 3






